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We have built a growing presence

in the U.S. mortgage markecplace through r€1ationships with brokers, a nationwide network

of NovaStar-affiliated branches, correspondent institutions and direct lending o consumers.
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In the way we bring i1t all together

in a conservatively managed investment portfolio for the benefit of our
shareholders. NovaStar distinguishes itself by integrating the parts to
create a profitable whole.
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Dear Fellow Shareholder We are pleased with the way our business came
together in 2003. Not just the strong earnings and
record dividends for NovaStar™ shareholders. Not just
the booming mortgage market. Not even the 177

percent increase in our stock price.

Most of all, che past year confirmed our long-term
vision for the growth of NovaStar, with the financial
and human resources to serve homeowners in the

nonconforming mortgage market. Our results lend

credibility to this strategic direction.

Through the accomplishments of 2003, NovaStar
has achieved a maturity and scale that will support

our drive to the next level of profitable growth.

In this report, we want to summarize the remarkable
business results of the past year. But more importantly,

we want to show how

our vision has matured
into a sustainable, coherent organization

to drive future growth and value creation.
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NovaStar Operational Facility
©  NovaStar Home Mortgage Branches

vr NovaStar Headquarters

By all measures, NovaStar made outstanding financial progress in 2003.

Our team of lending and investment professionals delivered another year of solid resules:

Net earnings grew 130 percent
$112.0 miliion for 2003, Earnings per share were
$4.91 on a diluted basis, an increase of 118 percent
over 2002. Return on average equity was 58.9 percent,

an improvement from 30.3 percent in the prior year.

The Board of Direcrors declared dividends of
5504 per share in 2003, more than double the
$2.15 per share from 2002. The board also announced a
plan to smooth out the volatilicy of future quarterly
payouts, providing a clearer and more predictable
view for shareholders of the relationship between net

earnings and dividends.

The value of NovaStar shares increased
177 percent, from $15.515 at the end of 2002 1o
a year-end 2003 close of $42.96. Both prices reflece the
2-for-1 split on December 1, 2003. Assuming reinvestment
of dividends, the total return to shareholders in 2003

would have been 216 percent.

The NovaStar business model continued to ateract support
from the capital markets. In 2003, we successfully
completed two equity offerings that
raised $77 million and completed mortgage-
backed securitizations totaling $5.3 billion. In January
2004, we complered a preferred equity offering, raising

$72 million.
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Growing presence meets
market needs

NovaStar is pursuing all major production channels
to meet the growing needs of borrowers in the
nonconforming mortgage market. In 2003, we
originated $5.25 billion in nonconforming loans,

up 111 percent from $2.49 billion in 2002.

Amid favorable market conditions in 2002 and 2003,
we have buile a unified, efficient operation to support

the company's long-term growth.

The wholesale channel, consisting of loans received
through independent mortgage brokers and our
affiliated branches, is our largest source of production.
We increased our sales force during 2003 to further
penetrate the wholesale market. More than 4,000
independent mortgage brokers nationwide originated
some $3.5 billion in loans for NovaStar in 2003,

an increase of 77 percent from the prior year.

Our network of NovaStar-affiliated branches, which
doubled to 432 offices by year-end from 216 at the end
of 2002, brokered #1.2 billion in loans to NovaStar in
2003, up 231 percent. These independently managed
branches operate under the NovaStar Home Mortgage

brand and use our software and support services.

The branches represent a competitive advantage for
NovaStar as we seek greater markec share. These

affiliated offices are free to broker their loans to more

than 300 mortgage lenders, but they wrote 55 percent
of nonconforming loans with NovaStar in 2003, making

this a very productive source for our portfolio.

Two other channels, correspondent relationships with

other financial institutions and direct lending chrough
NovaStar call centers and Internet sites, offer potential
for growth as we develop the infrastructure and marketing

effort to expand these channels.

Advanced technology is a halimark of our company's
operations, and the ability to use our underwriting
software and online processing capabilities is a

key attraction for brokers, affiliated branches and

correspondent lenders dealing with NovaStar.

Another key contributor to the success of NovaScar is
our loan servicing operation, which earned a ratings

upgrade to “strong” from Scandard & Poor’s in 2003.
The achievement reflected our seasoned management
and staff, well-designed systems for handling a large
volume of loans, and solid policies, procedures and

internal controls.

Focus differentiates
NovaStar business

NovaStar focuses on nonconforming single-family
mortgage loans — and this mindset is a key advancage
in making loans and managing our investment portfolio.
Nonconforming mortgages involve borrowers whose

loan size, credit details or other circumstances fall



outside conventional lending agency guidelines.

The borrowers represent a cross-section of America,
economically and demographically, and may seek
nonconforming loans for debt consolidation, the

purchase of a house or refinancing.

The profile of our customers runs contrary to some
stereotypes of the nonconforming mortgage industry.
In 2003, an average NovaScar first-mortgage
borrower was 44 years-old, with an annual income of
' approximately $62,500. The average loan provided
financing of $153,600, secured by a home valued at
$192,000, somewhat above the average value of all
existing and new homes. Second-mortgage borrowets
were somewhat younger, averaging 38, with slightly

higher incomes and an average loan size of $37,600.

Qur average customer’s credit profile in 2003 was
somewhat below the U.S. population’s median on
the standard FICO scoring system, in line with other
nonconforming fenders. We mitigate the potential
credit risks in our loan portfolio by using securitization,

mortgage insurance and other hedging strategies.

Focusing on nonconfarming loans is an advantage for
NovaStar, because the market is not adeguately served
by traditional institutions — and the somewhat higher
nonprime interest rates enable us to securitize pools
of loans while retaining a profitable portfolio. The
weighted average coupon on loans in our portfolio

was 7.7 percent at year-end.

We are specializing in a sectot that has ranged from
7 to 13 percent of total U.S. mortgage originations
in recent years. In 2003, the overall morrgage market
reached $3.8 crillion in originations, while noncon-

forming originations totaled approximately $290 billion,

according to estimates by National Morigage News. The

market has grown from approximately $25 billion in

nonconforming loans less than a decade ago, in 1994.

Longterm Growth in Nonconforming
Mortgage Market

(Billions of Dollars in Annual Originations)
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In 2003, NovaStar originated approximately 2 percent
of the country’s nonconforming loans — and our goal

is to increase this market presence.
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We hone our operating disciplines as we focus on sound

underwriting of nonconforming loans, prompt and
courteous customer service, and management of risks
through carefully designed securitizations and other

risk-mitigation strategies.

We affirmed our focus in 2003 by converting our Troy,
Michigan office from processing conforming loans to a

dedicated nonconforming facility serving the central region.

Strategy brings it all together

Qur core strategy focu;es on structuring portfolios
with attracrive long-term returns. Loan originations
and servicing generate some fee income, but 88 percent
of the net income of NovaStar in 2003 came from
managing the mortgage investment portfolio based

on loans we have underwritten,

NovaStar brings together thousands of loans that meet
our standards to create well-designed portfolios for

sale to institutional investors, sharing the underlying
tisk of these pools of loans. We securitized $5.3 billion

of loans in this way in 2003.

In these transactions, NovaStar retains a portfolio
of securities representing the cash flows from the
spread between rates of securities we sell and the
interest rates on the loans we originate, Even after
providing for potential credit losses and hedging
for rate fluctuations, these securities yield a high

return on equity for NovaStar.

At year-end 2003, the NovaStar portfolio of mortgage
securities totaled $382.3 million, an increase of 114

percent from $178.9 million at year-end 2002.

Our integrated approach creates a competitive advantage.
Building upon strong mortgage demand, we have
developed our wholesale lending, affiliated branches
and other channels — all to support the growth of our

long-term investment portfolio.

Quttook is strong
amid market changes

NovaStar has created a business model with the potential
for sustained long-term growth in loan originations,
investment portfolio, earnings and dividends. We expect
to continue to build the value of our business for

shareholders in the years to come.

In 2004, we expect originations to grow significantly
from prior-year levels, though not doubling as they did
in 2002 and 200%. Because of the long-term narure of
moftgage securities, our investment portfolio also can
be expected to continue to grow in 2004, even if loan
producrion were to flatten or slow down from record

2003 levels.

The interest rate environment and its impact on
earnings are difficult to predict with precision. The
monetary policy of recent years, which drove conventional

rates to a generational low in 2003, stimulated very
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strong loan demand for home purchases and refinancing.
Last summer, rates turned up from that low - and

originations declined in the overall markec.

However, originations of nonconforming loans continued
to increase for NovaStar from quarter to quarcer through
the end of 2003. Our business may be less sensitive than
the conventional market to rising interest rates because

of the different needs of the nonconforming borrower.

We expect a strong year in 2004, based on recent trends,
with earnings well above 2002 and in a range comparable
to the record level of 2003. Our commitment is to
continue to manage the portfolio of mortgage-backed
investments conservatively, minimizing risk while

maximizing the returns for shareholders.

Moving to the next level of growth

We have a clear vision for the future: NovaStar will
be in the forefront of meeting the growing need for
nonconforming loans to finance the plans and dreams

of homeowners.

The nonconforming market has experienced considerable
expansion over the past decade, and we are positioning
NovaStar to take hold of the next level of growth as

opportunities continue to develop in the future.
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Our operations have matured very nicely for an

eight year-old company, giving us a strong base to

grow. The network of independent brokers in 48 states

is broad and effective in producing loans for NovaStar.
Our 432 affiliated branches are contributing a growing
volume of nonconforming loans. We have close relationships
with institutional investors, who support the company’s

innovative securitization and portfolio strategy.

We envision sustained growth in our core wholesale

channel. In 2004, we plan to continue developing the
flow of nonconforming loans from brokers by adding
account executives in markets not adequately served.
And we will keep adding affiliated branches to increase

NovaStar market share in targeced regions.

We also expect to further penetrate less mature channels.
We are expanding our correspondent operations to buy
a larger amount of loans from other institutions in pools
that meet our underwriting guidelines. We are building
our brand and plan to expand retail, or direct lending to

consumers, through interactive and direct media channels.

Strategically, we will keep our focus on the noncon-
forming market because it offers opportunities for

attractive rerurns and ongoing growth.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

We want to thank the 4,800 professionals

whose energy and creativity generated a superb performance

in the past year, plus the many brokers and other business

partners who contribute to the success of NovaStar.

We also appreciate your support as we meer

important needs by connecting the hopes of thousands of

families with sources of mortgage-backed capital. We expect co

continue building significant value for NovaStar shareholders

over the long term.

SCOTT HARTMAN

Chairman of the Board
& Chief Executive Officer

LANCE ANDERSON

President
& Chief Operaring Officer

GREG BARMORE

Chairman of the
Compensation Committee

ART BURTSCHER

Chairman of the
Nominating/Corporate
Governance Committee

EDWARD MEHRER

Chairman of the
Audic Commirtee
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The following selected consolidated financial data is derived from our audited consolidated financial statements for the periods presented and

should be read in conjunction with the more detailed information therein and “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and

Results of Operations” included elsewhere in this annual report. Operating results are not necessarily indicative of future performance.

Selected Consolidated Financial and Other Data

(dollars in thousands, except per share amonnts)

For the Year Ended December 31,

2003 (A) 2002 (A) 2001 (A) 2000 1999
Consolidated Statement of Operations Data:
Interest income $ 170,420 S 107,143 S 57,904 S 47627 $ 66,713
Interest expense 40,364 27,728 27,366 34,696 46,758
Net interest income before credit recoveries (iosses) 130,056 79,415 30,538 12,931 19,955
Credit recoveries (losses) 389 432 (3,608) (5,449) (22,078)
Gains {losses) on sales of mortgage assets 144,005 53,305 37,347 (826) 351
Losses on derivative instruments (30,837) (36,841) (3,953) — —
General and administrative expenses 174,408 84,594 46,505 3,017 3,590
Net income (ioss) 111,996 48,761 32,308 5,626 (7,092)
Basic income (loss) per share (C) $ 5.04 ) 2.35 $ 1.61 ) 0.26 S {0.54)
Diluted income (loss) per share (C) S 491 ) 2.25 S 1.51 $ 0.25 S {0.54)

As of December 31,

2003 (A} 2002 (A) 2001 (A} 2000 1999
Consolidated Balance Sheet Data:
Mortgage Assets:

Mortgage loans S 792,709 $1,133,509 S 365,560 S 375,927 $620,406
Mortgage securities 382,287 178,879 71,584 46,650 6,775
Total assets 1,399,957 1,452,497 512,380 494,482 689,427
Borrowings 1,005,516 1,225,228 362,398 382,437 586,868
Stockholders’ equity 300,224 183,257 129,997 107,919 100,161
For the Year Ended December 31,

2003 (A} 2002 (A} 2001 (A} 2000 1999
Other Data:
Loans originated, principal $5,994,492 $2,781,539 $1,333,366 S 719,341 $452,554
Loans securitized, principal $5,319,435 51,560,001 $1,215,100 $ 584,350 $167,176
Noncorforming loans sold, principal $ 151,210 S 142,159 S 73324 S 172,839 $390,827
Loan servicing portfolio, principal $7,206,113 $3,657,640 $1,994,448 $1,112,615 $859,938
Branches, end of year 432 216 123 63 1
Loans brokered through branches $6,381,432 $2,622,950 $1,087,971 $ 193191 S —
Annualized return on assets 9.93% 6.05% 6.03% 0.97% (0.83)%
Annualized return on equity 58.90% 30.30% 27.04% 5.50% 6.71)%
Taxable income (loss) S 136,495 S 48473 S 5,242 S (2) S (90)
Taxable income (loss) per share (B) (C) ) 5.58 ) 2.32 S 0.46 S — S (0.01)
Dividends declared per common share (B) (C) S 5.04 $ 2.15 ) 0.48 ) — $ —
Dividends declared per preferred share $ — $ - S 1.08 S 0.49 S 037
Number of account executives 281 249 112 85 47

(A) Includes the assets, Liabilities, equity and results of operations for NFI Holding Corporation. The common stock of NFI Holding Corpovation was acquived on January 1, 2001,

(B) On_January 29, 2003, a $0.1065 special dividend velated to 2002 taxable income was declaved per common share.

(C) Per share amounts for all years have been adjusted for the 2-for-1 stock split on December 1, 2003,



Management’'s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

The following discussion should be read in conjunction with the consolidated financial statements of NovaStar Financial and the notes thereto
included elsewhere in this report.

Safe Harbor Statement

“Safe Harbor" statement under the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995: Statements in this discussion regarding NovaStar Financial,
Inc. and its business, which are not historical facts, are “forward-looking statements” that involve risks and uncertainties. Certain matters
discussed in this report may constitute forward4ooking statements within the meaning of the federal securities laws that inherently include
certain risks and uncertainties. Actual results and the time of certain events could differ materially from those projected in or contemplated by
the forward-looking statements due to a number of factors, including general economic conditions, fluctuations in interest rates, fluctuations in
prepayment speeds, fluctuations in losses due to defaults on mortgage loans, the availability of nonconforming residential mortgage loans, the
availability and access to financing and liquidity resources, and other risk factors previously outlined in this annual report on Form 10K for the
fiscal year ended December 31, 2003, Other factors not presently identified may also cause actual results to differ. Management continuously
updates and revises these estimates and assumptions based on actual conditions experienced. It is not practicable to publish all revisions
and, as a result, no one should assume that results projected in or contemplated by the forward-looking statements will continue to be
accurate in the future.

Overview of Performance

During 2003, we reported net income of $112.0 million, or $4.91 per diluted share, as compared to $48.8 million, or $2.25 per diluted share
in 2002. Our earnings were driven largely by the income generated by our mortgage securities portfolio, which increased from $178.9 million
as of December 31, 2002 to $382.3 million as of December 31, 2003. These securities are retained in securitizations of the mortgage loans
we originate. We securitized $5.3 billion of mortgage loans in 2003 as compared to $1.6 billion in 2002. The increased volume of mortgage
loans we securitized is directly attributable to the increase in our loan origination volume. During 2003 and 2002, we originated $5.3 billion
and $2.5 billion, respectively, in nonconforming, residential mortgage loans. We increased our loan production through adding sales personnel
and branch offices primarily in new and underserved markets.

Following is a diagram of the nonconforming industry in which we operate and our loan production during 2003 (in thousands).

Retail Wholesale Whole loan bulk purchases Securitization
NovaStar Direct to AAABBB rated Securities
Consumer 5255074 | Unrelated 9 Purchased by
$687,705 - Wholesale Conforming Loans < F"" Unrelated Bond Investors
Lenders Sold to Unrelated Parties a $5,698,500
$4,744,728 o
o |yl NovaStar Branches = o
5 $6,381,432 $432631 N formi . Excess Cash Flow and
2 > Novast §772.633 5 %“‘CD” ormmgd Iﬁoan.s % Subordinated Bonds
g $1,636,704 L(éndinzr . old to Unrelated Parties g —-ﬂ iretained by NovaStar)
(=3 =
@ r—» Unrelated Broker $3,645,304 A 5151210 J 3 5292675
o $5,319,435 @
- f = Cumulative Loan Servicing
Unrelated Mortgage NovaStar g Portfolio Total
- Bankers/Financia] 5279'853 —» Acquismon of 2 L_> as of December 31, 2003
Institutions Whole Loan Pools $7,206,113

(A) A portion of the loans securitized or sold to unvelated parties as of December 31, 2003 originated prior to 2003, but due to timing were not yer securitized or sold at the end of 2002,
Loans originated in 2003 that we have not securitized or sold to unrelated parties as of December 31, 2003 are included in owr mortgage loans held-for-sale.
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Summary of Operations and Key Performance Measurements

Virtually all of our net income is generated from our mortgage securities portfolio, which is generated from the securitization of nonconforming
loans we have originated. These mortgage securities represent the right to receive the net future cash flows from a pool of nonconforming
loans. Generally speaking, the more nonconforming loans we originate, the larger our securities portfolio and, therefore, the greater earnings
potential. As a result, earnings are largely dependent on the volume of nonconforming loans and related performance factors for those loans,
including their average coupon, borrower default and borrower prepayment. Information regarding our lending volume is presented under the
heading “Mortgage Loans.”

The primary function of our mortgage lending operations is to generate nonconforming loans, the majority of which will serve as collateral for
our mortgage securities. While our mortgage lending operations generate sizable revenues in the form of gains on sales of mortgage loans
and fee income from borrowers, the revenue serves largely to offset the related costs.

We also service the mortgage loans we originate and that serve as collateral for our mortgage securities. The servicing function is critical
to the management of credit risk (risk of borrower default and the related economic loss) within in our mortgage portfolio. Again, while this
operation generates significant fee revenue, its revenue serves largely to offset the cost of this function.

The key performance measures for management are;

» dollar volume of nonconforming mortgage loans originated

* relative cost of the loans originated

* characteristics of the loans (coupon, credit quality, etc.), which will indicate their expected yield
e return on our mortgage asset investments and the related management of interest rate risk

Management’s discussion and analysis of financial condition and results of operations, along with other portions of this report, are designed to
provide information regarding our performance and these key performance measures.

Known Material Trends

Over the last ten years, the nonconforming lending market has grown by approximately $265 billion to a market of approximately $290 billion
in 2003 as estimated by the National Mortgage News. A significant portion of these loans are made to borrowers who are using equity in
their primary residence to consolidate low-balance, installment or consumer debt. Additionally, this market has been very stable and growing
through all interest rate environments, meaning that while interest rates have increased and decreased dramatically over that period, the base
market for nonconforming loans has not increased or decreased in relationship to interest rates. Management estimates that NovaStar has a
2-3% market share, While management cannot predict consumer spending and horrowing habits, historical trends indicate that the market in
which we operate is relatively stable and growing.

We depend on the capital markets to finance the mortgage loans we originate. The primary bonds we issue in our loan securitizations are sold
to large, institutional investors. In the shortterm, we finance our mortgage loans using “warehouse” lines of credit provided by commercial
and investment banks. The equity marketplace provides capital to operate our business. The trend has been favorable in the capital markets
for the types of securitization transactions we execute. Investor appetite for the bonds created has been strong. Additionally, commercial and
investment banks have provided significant liquidity to finance our mortgage lending operations through warehouse facilities. While management
cannot predict the future liquidity environment, we are unaware of any material reason to prevent continued liquidity support in the capital
markets for our business. See the “Liquidity and Capital Resources” section of “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition
and Results of Operations” for further discussion of liquidity risks and resources available to us.

Within the past year, the mortgage REIT industry has seen a significant increase in the desire for raising public capital. Additionally, there have
been several new entrants to the mortgage REIT business and other mortgage lender conversions {or proposed conversions) to REIT status.
This increased activity may impact the pricing and underwriting guidelines within the nonconforming marketplace. We have not changed our
guidelines or pricing in response to this activity nor do we have any plans to make such changes.



The net interest margin between the coupon on the mortgage loans and the cost of funding, largely tied to one-month LIBOR, provides the
cash flow and yield on our mortgage securities. Generally, when shortterm rates fall, our cash flow and yield is higher. During 2001 and
2002, short-term rates fell dramatically, which correspondingly increased our cash flow and yield. As mortgage interest rates leveled-off in
2003, the spread on our mortgage securities has returned to expected or normal levels. Additionally, in 2002 we began transferring interest
rate agreements, at the time of securitization, into the securitization trusts to help reduce interest rate risk. While the interest rate agreements
served to decrease the yield in 2003, they are expected to decrease the volatility of the future cash flows on our mortgage securities. As a
result, future interest income on our mortgage securities is expected to be less volatile. We expect the cash flow and yield to continue to be
at these normalized levels. On the other hand, the increased loan origination, leading to a larger securities portfolio, will compensate for the
decreased yield. See “Net Interest Income” under the “Results of Operations” section for further discussion and analysis of our mortgage
asset yields,

State and local governing bodies are focused on the nonconforming lending business and the fees borrowers incur in obtaining a mortgage
loan ~ generally termed “predatory lending” within the mortgage industry. In several instances, states or local governing bodies have imposed
strict laws on fenders to curb predatary lending. To date, these laws have had an insignificant impact on our business. We have capped fee
structures consistent with those adopted by federal mortgage agencies and have implemented rigid processes to ensure that our Jending
practices are not predatory in nature.

Significance of Estimates and Critical Accounting Policies

We prepare our consolidated financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America
and, therefore, are required to make estimates regarding the values of our assets and liabilities and in recording income and expenses. These
estimates are based, in part, on our judgment and assumptions regarding various economic conditions that we believe are reasonable based
on facts and circumstances existing at the time of reporting. The results of these estimates affect reported amounts of assets, liabilities and
accumulated other comprehensive income at the date of the consolidated financial statements and the reported amounts of income, expenses
and other comprehensive income during the periods presented. The following summarizes the components of our consolidated financial
statements where understanding accounting policies is critical to understanding and evaluating our reported financial results, especially given
the significant estimates used in applying the policies. The discussion is intended to demonstrate the significance of estimates to our financial
statements and the related accounting policies. Detailed accounting poficies are provided in Note 1 to our consolidated financial statements.
Our critical accounting estimates impact only two of our three reportable segments; our mortgage portfolio management and mortgage
lending and loan servicing segments. Management has discussed the development and selection of these critical accounting estimates

with the audit committee of our board of directors and the audit committee has reviewed our disclosure.

Transfers of Assets (Loan and Mortgage Security Securitizations) and Related Gains In a loan securitization, we combine the
mortgage loans we originate in pools to serve as collateral for asset-backed bonds that are issued to the public. In a mortgage security
securitization (also known as a “Resecuritization”), we combine mortgage securities retained in previous loan securitization transactions to
serve as collateral for asset-backed bonds that are issued to the public. The loans or mortgage securities are transferred to a trust designed
to serve only for the purpose of holding the collateral. The trust is considered a qualifying special purpose entity as defined by SFAS No. 140,
Accounting for Transfers and Servicing of Financial Assets and Extinguishments of Liabilities — a veplacement of FASB Statement No. 125,
The owners of the asset-backed bonds have no recourse to us in the event the collateral does not perform as planned.

in order for us to determine proper accounting treatment for each securitization or resecuritization, we evaluate whether or not we have
retained or surrendered control over the transferred assets by reference to the conditions set forth in SFAS No. 140, All terms of these
fransactions are evaluated against the conditions set forth in these statements. Some of the guestions that must be considered include:

» Have the transferred assets been isolated from the transferor?

¢ Does the transferee have the right to pledge or exchange the transferred assets?

o Is there a “call” agreement that requires the transferor to return specific assets?

* [s there an agreement that both obligates and entitles the transferor to repurchase or redeem the transferred assets prior to maturity?
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Generally, we intend to structure our securitizations so that control over the collateral is transferred and the transfer is accounted for as a
sale. For resecuritizations, we intend to structure these transactions to be accounted for as secured borrowings.

When these transfers are executed in a manner such that we have surrendered control over the collateral, the transfer is accounted for as a
sale. In accordance with SFAS No. 140, a gain or loss on the sale is recognized based on the carrying amount of the financial assets involved
in the transfer, allocated between the assets transferred and the retained interests based on their relative fair value at the date of transfer.

In a loan securitization, we do retain the right to service the underlying mortgage loans and we also retain certain mortgage securities issued
by the trust (see Martgage Securities below). In a resecuritization, we retain an interest in a subordinated security that represents the right to
receive the cash flows on the underlying mortgage security collateral after the senior bonds have been satisfied. As previously discussed, the
gain recognized upan securitization (or resecuritization) depends on, among other things, the estimated fair value of the components of the
securitization {or resecuritization) — the loans or mortgage securities transferred, the securities retained and the mortgage servicing rights.
The estimated fair value of the securitization (or resecuritization) components is considered a “critical accounting estimate” as 1) these gains
or losses represent a significant portion of our operating results and 2) the valuation assumptions used regarding economic conditions and the
make-up of the collateral, including interest rates, principal payments, prepayments and loan defaults are highly uncertain and require a large
degree of judgment.

We believe the best estimate of the initial value of the securities we retain in a whole loan securitization is derived from the market value of the
pooled loans. The initial value of the loans is estimated based on the expected open market sales price of a similar pool. We occasionally
accept bids on our whole loans in order to test the market price. In open market transactions, the purchaser has the right to reject loans at
its discretion. In a loan securitization, loans cannot generally be rejected. As a result, we adjust the market price for the loans to compensate
for the estimated value of rejected loans. The market price of the securities retained is derived by deducting the percent of net proceeds
received in the securitization (i.e. the economic value of the loans transferred) from the estimated adjusted market price for the entire pool

of the loans.

An implied vield (discount rate) is calculated based on the initial vaiue derived abave and using projected cash flows generated using assumptions
for prepayments, expected credit losses and interest rates. We ensure the resulting implied yield is commensurate with current market conditions.
Additionally, this vield serves as the initial accretable vield used to recognize income on the securities.

For purposes of valuing our mortgage securities, it is important to know that in recent securitization transactions we not only have transferred
loans to the trust, but we have also transferred interest rate agreements to the trust with the objective of reducing interest rate risk within

the trust. During the period before loans are transferred in a securitization transaction, as discussed under “Net Interest Income,” “Interest
Rate/Market Risk” and “Hedging,” we enter into interest rate swap or cap agreements to reduce interest rate risk. We use interest rate cap
and swap contracts to mitigate the risk of the cost of variable rate liabilities increasing at a faster rate than the earnings on assets during a
period of rising rates. Certain interest rate agreements are then transferred into the trust at the time of securitization. The trust assumes the
interest rate agreements and, therefore, the trust assumes the obligation to make payments and obtains the right to receive payments under
these agreements.

In valuing our mortgage securities it is also important to understand what portion of the underlying mortgage loan collateral is covered by
mortgage insurance. The cost of the insurance is paid by the trust from proceeds the trust receives from the underlying collateral. The trust
legally assumes the responsibility to pay the mortgage insurance premiums and the rights to receive claims for credit losses. Therefore,

we have no obligation to pay these insurance premiums. This information is significant for valuation as the mortgage insurance significantly
reduces the credit losses born by the owner of the loan. We discuss mortgage insurance premiums under the heading “Premiums for
Mortgage Loan Insurance.”

The weighted average whole loan market price used in the initial valuation of our retained securities was 103.71 and 103.49 during 2003
and 2002, respectively. The weighted average implied discount rate for the twelve months ended December 31, 2003 and 2002 was 22%
and 21%, respectively. If the whole loan market price used in the initial valuation of our mortgage securities in 2003 had been increased or
decreased by 50 basis paints, the initial value of qur mortgage securities and the gain we recognized would have increased or decreased by
$26.6 million.



information regarding the assumptions we used is discussed under “Mortgage Securities” in the following discussion.

When we do have the ability to exert control over the transferred collateral, the assets remain on our financial records and a liability is recorded
for the related asset-backed bonds.

Mortgage Securities Our mortgage securities represent beneficial interests we retain in securitization transactions. The beneficial interests
we retain in securitization transactions primarily consist of the right to receive the future cash flows from a pool of securitized mortgage loans
which include:

* The interest spread between the coupon on the underlying loans and the cost of financing.

 Prepayment penalties received from borrowers who payoff their loans early in their life.

» Qvercollateralization and other subordinated securities, which are designed to protect the primary bondholder from credit loss on
the underlying loans.

The beneficial interests we retain in resecuritization transactions represent the right to receive the remaining cash flows from the underlying
mortgage security collateral after the obligations to outside bondholders have been satisfied.

The cash flows we receive are highly dependent upon the interest rate environment, The cost of financing for the securitized loans is indexed
to shortterm interest rates, while the loan coupons are less interest sensitive. As a result, as rates rise and fall, our cash flows will fall and
rise, which in turn will decrease or increase the value of our mortgage securities. Additionally, the cash flows we receive are dependent on
the default and prepayment experience of the borrowers in underlying mortgage security collateral. Increasing or decreasing cash flows will
increase or decrease the yield on our securities.

We believe the accounting estimates related to the valuation of our mortgage securities and establishing the rate of income recognition on
mortgage securities are “critical accounting estimates” because they can materially affect net income and stockholders' equity and require
us to forecast interest rates, mortgage principal payments, prepayments and loan default assumptions which are highly uncertain and require
a large degree of judgment. The rate used to discount the projected cash flows is also critical in the valuation of our mortgage securities.
We use internal, historical collateral performance data and published forward yield curves when medeling future expected cash flows and
establishing the rate of income recognized on mortgage securities. We believe the value of our mortgage securities is fair, but can provide
no assurance that future prepayment and loss experience or changes in their required market discount rate will not require write-downs of the
residual assets. Write-downs would reduce income of future periods.

We estimate fair value for the securities we retain in a resecuritization transaction based on the present value of future expected cash flows
estimated using management’s best estimate of the key assumptions, including credit losses, prepayment speeds, forward yield curves, and
discount rates commensurate with the risks involved.

As payments are received they are applied to the cost basis of the mortgage related security. Each period, the accretable yield for each
mortgage security is evaluated and, to the extent there has been a change in the estimated cash flows, it is adjusted and applied prospectively.
The estimated cash flows change as management's assumptions for credit losses, borrower prepayments and interest rates are updated.

The assumptions are established using internally developed models. We prepare analyses of the yield for each security using a range of these
assumptions, The accretable yield used in recording interest income is generally set within a range of base assumptions. The accretable yield
is recorded as interest income with a corresponding increase to the cost basis of the mortgage security.

At each reporting period subsequent to the initial valuation of the retained securities, the fair value of mortgage securities is estimated based
on the present value of future expected cash flows to be received. Management's best estimate of key assumptions, including credit losses,
prepayment speeds, the market discount rates and forward vield curves commensurate with the risks involved, are used in estimating future
cash flows. To the extent that the cost basis of mortgage securities exceeds the fair value and the unrealized loss is considered to be

other than temporary, an impairment charge is recognized and the amount recorded in accumulated other comprehensive income or loss is
reclassified to earnings as a realized l0ss.
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During 2003, our average security yield has decreased to 34.3% for the year ended December 31, 2003 from 42.7% for the same period

of 2002. This decrease is a result in the decline in loan coupon rates of the underlying collateral of our newer securities compared with our
older securities. Also:contributing to the decrease in yield is the fact that in 2002 we began transferring interest rate agreements, at the time
of securitization, into the securitization trusts to help reduce interest rate risk. While the interest rate agreements served to decrease the vield
in 2003, they are expected to decrease the volatility of the future cash flows on our mortgage securities. As a result, future interest income
on our mortgage securities is expected to be less volatile. Mortgage securities income has increased from $56.5 million for the twelve
months ended December 31, 2002 to $98.8 million for the same period of 2003 due to the increase in the average balance of our securities
portfolio. If the rates used to accrue income on our mortgage securities during 2003 had been increased or decreased by 10%, net income
during the twelve months ended 2003 would have increased by $19.5 million and decreased by $20.6 milfion, respectively.

As of December 31, 2003 and 2002, the weighted average discount rate used in valuing our mortgage securities was 22% and 21%,
respectively. The weighted-average constant prepayment rate used in valuing our mortgage securities as of December 31, 2003 was 29 versus
46 as of December 31, 2002. If the discount rate used in valuing our mortgage securities as of December 31, 2003 had been increased by
500 basis points, the value of our mortgage securities would have decreased by $22.0 million. f we had decreased the discount rate used

in valuing our mortgage securities by 500 basis points, the value of our mortgage securities would have increased by $25.0 million.

Mortgage Loans and Allowance for Credit Losses Mortgage loans held-for-sale are recorded at the lower of cost or market determined
on an aggregate basis. Mortgage loan origination fees and direct mortgage loan origination costs on mortgage loans held-for-sale are
deferred until the related loans are sold. Mortgage loans held-in-portfolio are recorded at their cost, adjusted for the amortization of net
deferred costs and for credit losses inherent in the portfolio. Mortgage loan origination fees and associated direct mortgage loan origination
costs on mortgage loans held-in-portfolio are deferred and recognized over the life of the loan as an adjustment to yield using the level yield
method. An allowance for credit losses is maintained for mortgage loans held-in-portfafio.

The allowance for credit Josses on mortgage loans held-in-portfolio, and therefore the related adjustment to income, is based on the assess-
ment by management of various factors affecting our mortgage loan portfolio, including current economic conditions, the makeup of the port-
folio based on credit grade, loanto-value, delinquency status, mortgage insurance we purchase and other relevant factors. The allowance is
maintained through ongoing adjustments to operating income. The assumptions used by management regarding key economic indicators are
highly uncertain and involve a great deal of judgment,

Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities Our objective and strategy for using derivative instruments is to mitigate the risk of
increased casts on our variable rate liabilities during a period of rising rates (i.e. interest rate risk). Qur primary goals for managing interest
rate risk are to maintain the net interest margin between our assets and liabilities and diminish the effect of changes in general interest rate
levels on the market value of the Company. We primarily enter into interest rate swap agreements and interest rate cap agreements to man-
age our sensitivity to changes in market interest rates. The interest rate agreements we use have an active secondary market, and none are
obtained for a speculative nature, for instance, trading. These interest rate agreements are intended to provide income and cash flows to off-
set potential reduced net interest income and cash flows under certain interest rate environments. The determination of effectiveness is the
primary assumption and estimate used in hedging. At trade date, these instruments and their hedging relationship are identified, designated
and documented.

SFAS No. 133, Accounting for Dervivative Instruments and Hedging Activities (as amended), standardizes the accounting for derivative instru-
ments, including certain instruments embedded in other contracts, by requiring that an entity recognize those items as assets or fiabilities in
the balance sheet and measure them at fair value. If certain conditions are met, an entity may elect to designate a derivative instrument either
as a cash flow hedge, a fair value hedge or a hedge of foreign currency exposure. SFAS No. 133 requires derivative instruments to be record-
ed at their fair value with hedge ineffectiveness recognized in earnings.

All of our derivative instruments that meet the hedge accounting criteria of SFAS No. 133 are considered cash flow hedges. We also have
derivative instruments that do not meet the requirements for hedge accounting. However, these instruments also contribute to our overall risk
management strategy by serving to reduce interest rate risk on average shortterm borrowings used to fund loans held-for-sale.



The fair value of our derivative instruments along with any margin accounts associated with the contracts are included in other assets.

Any changes in fair value of derivative instruments related to hedge effectiveness are reported in accumulated other comprehensive income.
Changes in fair value of derivative instruments related to hedge ineffectiveness and non-hedge activity are recorded as adjustments to
earnings. For those derivative instruments that do not qualify for hedge accounting, changes in the fair value of the instruments are recorded
as adjustments to earnings.

Mortgage Servicing Rights (MSR) Originated MSR are recorded at allocated cost based upon the relative fair values of the transferred
joans and the servicing rights. MSR are amortized in proportion to the projected net servicing revenue over the expected life of the related
mortgage loans. Periodically, we evaluate the carrying value of originated MSR based on their estimated fair value. If the estimated fair value,
using a discounted cash flow methodology, is less than the carrying amount of the mortgage servicing rights, the mortgage servicing rights are
written down to the amount of the estimated fair value. For purposes of evaluating and measuring impairment of MSR we stratify the mortgage
servicing rights based on their predominant risk characteristics. The significant risk characteristic considered is period of origination. The
mortgage loans underlying the MSR are pools of homogenous, nonconforming residential loans.

The fair value of MSR is highly sensitive to changes in assumptions. Changes in prepayment speed assumptions have the most significant
impact on the fair value of MSR. Generally, as interest rates decline, prepayments accelerate due to increased refinance activity, which resuits
in a decrease in the fair value of MSR. As interest rates rise, prepayments slow down, which generally results in an increase in the fair value
of MSR. Ali assumptions are reviewed for reasonableness on a quarterly basis and adjusted as necessary to reflect current and anticipated
market conditions. Thus, any measurement of the fair value of MSR is limited by the existing conditions and the assumptions utilized as of

a particular point in time. Those same assumptions may not be appropriate if applied at a different peint in time.

Stock-Based Compensation Prior to 2003, we accounted for our stock-based compensation pian using the recognition and measurement
principles of Accounting Principles Board (APB) Opinion No. 25, Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees and related interpretations. We
accounted for stock aptions based on the specific terms of the options granted. Options with variable terms, including those options for which
the strike price has been adjusted and options issued by us with attached dividend equivalent rights, resulted in adjustments to compensation
expense to the extent the market price of the common stock changed. No expense was recognized for options with fixed terms.

During the fourth quarter of 2003, we adopted the fair value recognition provisions of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards {SFAS)
No. 123, Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation. SFAS No. 123 requires that all options be valued at the date of grant and expensed
over their vesting period. We use the Black-Scholes option pricing model to value options granted.

Additionally, we selected the modified prospective method of adoption described in SFAS No. 148, Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation-
Transition and Disclosure. Under this method, the change is retroactive to January 1, 2003 and compensation cost recognized in 2003 is
the same as that which would have been recognized had the fair value method of SFAS No. 123 been applied from its original effective date.
The pretax impact of adopting the provisions under the modified prospective method for the nine months ended September 30, 2003 was

a decrease to compensation expense of $7.1 million, In accordance with the modified prospective method of adoption, resuits for prior
years have not been restated. SFAS No. 123 states that the adoption of the fair value based method is a change to a preferable method of
accounting. We believe that use of the fair value based method to record stock-based compensation expense is consistent with the accounting
for all other forms of compensation.

in accordance with the provisions of SFAS No. 123 and SFAS No. 148, $1.3 million was recorded for total stock-based compensation expense
in 2003. In accordance with APB No. 25, total stock-based compensation expense was $2.5 million and $0.7 million, respectively, for the
years ended December 31, 2002 and 2001.
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Financial Condition as of December 31, 2003 and 2002

Mortgage Loans We classify our mortgage loans into two categories: “held-for-sale” and “held-in-portfolic.” Loans we have originated,

but have not yet sold or securitized, are classified as “held-for-sale.” We expect to sell these loans outright in third party transactions or in
securitization transactions that will be, for tax and accounting purposes, recarded as sales. We use warehouse lines of credit and mortgage
repurchase agreements to finance our held-for-sale loans. As such, the fluctuations in mortgage loans ~ held-for-sale and short-term borrowings
between December 31, 2003 and December 31, 2002 is dependent on loans we have originated during the period as well as loans we have
sold outright or through securitization transactions.

The volume and cost of our loan production is critical to our financial results. The loans we produce serve as collateral for our mortgage
securities and generate gains as they are sold or securitized. The cost of our production is also critical to our financial results as it is a
significant factor in the gains we recognize. The following table summarizes our loan production for 2003 and 2002. We discuss our cost
of production under “General and Administrative Expenses” under “Results of Operations.” Also, details regarding mortgage loans sold or
securitized and the gains recognized during 2003 can be found in the “Gains on Sales of Mortgage Assets and Losses on Derivative
Instruments” section of this document.

Table 1 — Nonconforming Loan Originations

(dollars in thousands, except for avevage loan balance)

Weighted Average Percent with
Average Price Paid Loan to FICO Prepayment
Number Principal Loan Balance to Broker Value Score Coupon Penalty
2003 36,911 $5,250,978 $142,261 101.2% 78% 638 7.3% 77%
2002 18,453 $2,492,767 $135,087 101.1% 79% 628 8.3% 80%

A portion of the mortgage loans on our balance sheet serve as collateral for asset-backed bonds we have issued and are classified as “held-in-
portfolio.” The carrying value of “held-in-portfolioc” mortgage loans as of December 31, 2003 was $94.7 million compared to $149.9 million
as of December 31, 2002.

Premiums are paid on substantially all mortgage loans. Premiums on mortgage loans held-in-portfolio are amortized as a reduction of
interest income over the estimated lives of the loans. For mortgage loans held-for-sale, premiums are deferred until the related loans are
sold. To mitigate the effect of prepayments on interest income from morigage loans, we generally strive to originate mortgage loans with
prepayment penalties.

In periods of decreasing interest rates, borrowers are more likely to refinance their mortgages to obtain a better interest rate. Even in
rising rate environments, borrowers tend to repay their mortgage principal balances earlier than is required by the terms of their mortgages.
Nonconforming borrowers, as they update their credit rating, are more likely to refinance their mortgage loan to obtain a lower interest rate.

The operating performance of our mortgage loan portfolio, including net interest income, allowance for credit losses and effects of hedging,
are discussed under “Results of Operations” and “Interest Rate/Market Risk.” Gains on the sales of mortgage loans, including impact of
securitizations treated as sales, is also discussed under “Results of Operations.” Additional information relating to our loans held-in-portfolio
and loans held-for-sale can be accessed via our website al www.novastarmortgage.com. Such information includes a summary of our loans
held-in-portfolio and loans held-for-sale by FICO score and geographic concentration. For held-in-portfolio loans, loan performance characteristics
such as credit quality and prepayment experience are also available.



Table 2 — Carrying Value of Mortgage Loans

(dollars in thousands)

December 31, 2003

December 31, 2002

Held-in-portfolio:

Current principal S 94,162 $149,918
Premium $ 1,874 S 299%
Coupon 10.0% 10.0%
Percent with prepayment penalty —% 18%
Held-for-sale:

Current principal $687,880 $972,360
Premium S 10,112 S 11,273
Coupon 7.7% 8.0%
Percent with prepayment penalty 74% 81%

Mortgage Securities - Available-for-Sale Since 1998, we have pooled the majority of the loans we have originated to serve as collateral
for asset-backed bonds in securitizations that are treated as sales for accounting and tax purposes. In these transactions, the loans are
removed from our balance sheet. However, we retain excess interest, prepayment penalty and subordinated principal securities. Additionally,
we service the loans sold in these securitizations (see “Mortgage Servicing Rights” under the header “Financial Condition as of December 31,
2003 and 2002"). As of December 31, 2003 and 2002, the fair value of our mortgage securities was $382.3 million and $178.9 million,
respectively. During 2003 and 2002, we executed securitizations totaling $5.3 billion and $1.6 billion, respectively, in mortgage loans and
retained mortgage securities with a value of $299.8 million and $92.9 million, respectively. See Table 3 for a summary of the activity in our
mortgage securities portfolio,

The value of our securities represents the present value of the securities' cash flows that we expect to receive over their lives, considering
estimated prepayment speeds and credit losses of the underlying loans, discounted at an appropriate risk-adjusted market rate of return.
The cash flows are realized over the life of the loan collateral as cash distributions are received from the trust that owns the collateral.

In estimating the fair value of our mortgage securities, management must make assumptions regarding the future performance and cash flow
of the mortgage loans collateralizing the securities. These estimates are based on management's judgments about the nature of the loans,
The cash flows we receive on our mortgage securities will be the net of the gross coupon and the bond cost less administrative costs (servicing
and trustee fees) and the cost of mortgage insurance. Additionally, the trust is a party to interest rate agreements. Our cash flow will include
{exclude) payments from (to) the interest rate agreement counterparty. Table 4 provides a summary of the critical assumptions used in
estimating the cash flows of the collateral and the resulting estimated fair value of the mortgage securities.

During the past two years, interest expense on asset-backed bonds has been unexpectedly low. As a result, the spread between the coupon
interest and the bond cost has been unusually high. As a result, our cost basis in many of our mortgage securities has been significantly
reduced. For example, our cost basis in NMFT Series 2001-1 has been reduced to zero {see Table 4). When our cost basis in the retained
securities (interest only, prepayment penalty and subordinated securities) reaches zero, the remaining future cash flows received on the
securities are recognized entirely as income.
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The operating performance of our mortgage securities portfolio, including net interest income and effects of hedging are discussed under
“Results of Operations™ and “Interest Rate/Market Risk." Additional information relating to our loans collateralizing our mortgage securities
can be accessed via our website at www.novastarmortgage.com. Such information includes @ summary of our loans collateralizing our
mortgage securities by FICO score and geographic concentration, as well as, loan performance characteristics such as credit quality and
prepayment experience:

Table 3 — Rollforward of Mortgage Securities

(in thousands)

Net Estimated Fair Value
Cost Unrealized Gain of Mortgage Securities
As of January 1, 2002 $ 54,594 $16,990 $ 71,584
Increases (decreases) to mortgage securities:
New securities retained in securitizations 90,785 2,118 92,903
Accretion of income 56,481 — 56,481
Proceeds from paydowns of securities {99,195) — {99,195)
Mark-to-market value adjustment — 57,106 57,106
Net increase to mortgage securities 48,071 59,224 107,295
As of December 31, 2002 $102,665 $76,214 $178,879
Increases (decreases) to mortgage securities:
New securities retained in securitizations (A) 292,675 7,077 299,752
Accretion of income 98,804 — 98,804
Proceeds from paydowns of securities (199,582) — (189,582)
Mark-to-market value adjustment — 4434 4434
Net increase to mortgage securities 191,897 11,511 203,408
As of December 31, 2003 $294,562 $87,725 $382,287

(A) See Note 3 of the consolidated financial statements for futther discussion.



Table 4 — Valuation of Individual Mortgage Securities and Assumptions

(dollars in thousands) .
Assumptions at
Estimated Fair Current Assumptions (B) Trust Securitization (B)
Net Value of Constant  Expected Constant  Expected
Unrealized Mortgage Discount Prepayment Credit Discount Prepayment Credit
Cost Gain {Loss) Securities Rate Rate Losses (A) Rate Rate Losses (A)
December 31, 2003:
NMFT 1999-1
Subordinated securities $6,119 100 $6,018 17% 39% 5.2% 17% 30% 2.5%
NMFT 2000-1
Interest only — 1,942 1,942
Prepayment penalty — 244 244
Subordinated securities 299 708 1,007
299 2,894 3,193 15 57 1.3 15 27 1.0
NMFT 2000-2
Interest only — 3,074 3,074
Prepayment penalty — 274 274
Subordinated securities 754 1,993 2,747
754 5,341 6,085 15 63 1.0 15 28 1.0
NMFT 2001-1
Interest only — 6,386 6,386
Prepayment penalty — 518 518
Subordinated securities — 1,629 1,629
— 8,533 8,533 20 53 1.1 20 28 1.2
NMFT 2001-2
Interest only — 16,343 16,343
Prepayment penaity — 1,469 1,469
Subordinated securities 185 3,164 3,349
185 20,976 21,161 25 41 0.9 25 28 1.2
NMFT 2002-1
Interest only 8,437 5,285 13,722
Prepayment penalty 550 937 1,487
Subordinated securities 1,183 3,444 4,627
10,170 9,666 19,836 20 35 1.3 20 32 1.7
NMFT 20022
Interest only 7,093 1,489 8,582
Prepayment penalty 582 678 1,260
Subordinated securities 1,750 1,315 3,065
9,425 3,482 12,907 25 36 18 25 27 16
NMFT 2002-3
interest only 20,801 5,362 26,163
Prepayment penalty 1,348 1,662 3,010
Subordinated securities 2,225 1,847 4,072
24,374 8,871 33,245 20 32 0.9 20 30 1.0
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Table 4 — Valuation of Individual Mortgage Securities and Assumptions {cont.}

(dollars in thowsands) .
Assumptiaons at

Estimated Fair Current Assumptions (B} Trust Securitization (B)
Net Value of Constant  Expected Constant  Expected
Unrealized Morigage Discount Prepayment Credit Discount Prepayment Credit
Cost Gain {Loss)  Securities Rate Rate Losses (A) Rate Rate Losses (A)
NMFT 2003-1
Interest only 47,352 2,280 49,632
Prepayment penalty 3,949 1,814 5,763
Subordinated securities 6,698 2,877 9,575
57,999 6,971 64,970 20 23 2.8 20 28 3.3
NMFT 2003-2
Interest only 58,709 4,863 63,572
Prepayment penalty 3,042 2,513 5,555
Subordinated securities 25 265 290
61,776 7,641 69,417 28 26 2.6 28 25 2.7
MFT 2003-3
Interest only 72,637 3,128 75,765
Prepayment penalty 3,098 1,830 4,928
Subordinated securities 1,628 3,535 5,163
77,363 8,493 85,856 20 23 34 20 22 3.6
NMFT 20034
Interest only 41,668 4,107 45,775
Prepayment penalty 4,430 ol 4,491
Subordinated securities — 790 790
46,098 4,958 51,056 20 30 53 20 30 5.1
Total $294,562 $87,725 $382,287
December 31, 2002:
NMFT 1999-1
Subordinated securities $5,791 $(1,541) $4,250 17% 26% 4.8% 17% 30% 2.5%
NMFT 2000-1
Interest only 984 3,089 4,073
Prepayment penalty 273 370 643
Subordinated securities 299 1,041 1,340
1,556 4,500 6,056 15 67 0.7 15 27 1.0
NMFT 2000-2
interest only 1,355 5,331 6,686
Prepayment penalty 379 620 999
Subordinated securities 792 1,629 2,421
2,526 7,580 10,106 15 70 0.7 15 28 1.0
NMFT 2001-1
Interest only 1,766 10,263 12,029
Prepayment penalty 311 1,806 2,117
Subordinated securities 324 1,886 2,210

2,401 13,955 16,356 20 68 1.0 20 28 1.2




Table 4 — Valuation of Individual Mortgage Securities and Assumptions {cont.)

(dollars in thousands) A ti t
ssumptions a

Estimated Fair Current Assumptions {B) Trust Securitization (B)
Net Value of Constant  Expected Constant  Expected
Unrealized Mortgage Discount Prepayment Credit Discount Prepayment Credit
Cost Gain (Loss) Securities Rate Rate Losses (A} Rate Rate Losses (A}
NMFT 2001-2
Interest only 10,295 20,806 31,101
Prepayment penalty 2,007 4,055 6,062
Subordinated securities 1,315 2,658 3,973
13,617 27,519 41,136 25 58 1.0 25 28 1.2
NMFT 2002-1
Interest only 14,925 6,306 21,231
Prepayment penalty 2,491 1,053 3,544
Subardinated securities 3,343 1,413 4,756
20,759 8,772 29,531 20 48 1.2 20 32 1.7
NMFT 2002-2
Interest only 13,941 3,650 17,591
Prepayment penalty 1,764 462 2,226
Subordinated securities 2,443 639 3,082
18,148 4,751 22,899 25 30 1.6 25 27 1.6
NMFT 2002-3
Interest only 31,729 8,947 40,676
Prepayment penalty 3,057 862 3,919
Subordinated securities 3,081 869 3,950
37,867 10,678 48,545 20 30 1.0 20 30 1.0
Total $102,665 $76,214 $178,879

(A) Represents expected credit losses for the life of the secuvitization up to the expected date in which the related asser-backed bonds can be called.

(B) The current discount vate and assumptions and those at trust secusitization, which were previously disclosed, have been adjusted 1o reflect management’s vevised estimates for volariliry
and visk associated with the underlying morigage loan collateral. These revisions do not impact previously recorded amounts.

Servicing Related Advances Advances on behalf of borrowers for taxes, insurance and other customer service functions are made by
NovaStar Mortgage, Inc. and aggregated $19.3 million as of December 31, 2003 compared with $11.9 million as of December 31, 2002.
These balances will generally increase as our assets and loan servicing balances increase.

Mortgage Servicing Rights As discussed under Mortgage Securities - Available for Sale, we retain the right to service mortgage loans
we originate and have securitized. Servicing rights for loans we sell to third parties are not retained and we have not purchased the right to
service loans. As of December 31, 2003, we have $19.7 million in capitalized mortgage servicing rights compared with $7.9 million as of
December 31, 2002. The value of the mortgage servicing rights we retained in our securitizations during 2003 and 2002 was $20.8 million
and $6.1 million, respectively. Amortization of mortgage servicing rights was $9.0 million and $4.6 million for years ended December 31,
2003 and 2002, respectively.

Assets Acquired through Foreclosure As of December 31, 2003, we had 53 properties in real estate owned with a carrying value of
$3.2 million compared to 69 properties with a carrying value of $5.9 million as of December 31, 2002. Losses or gains from the ultimate
disposition of real estate owned are charged or credited to operating income and are detailed under the heading “Gains on Sales of Mortgage
Assets and Losses on Derivative Instruments.”
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Other Assets Included in other assets is collateral required under the terms of our derivative instrument contracts, derivative instrument
market values, fixed assets, receivables from securitizations, deferred tax asset and other miscellaneous assets. Deposits with our derivative
counterparties were $20.9 million as of December 31, 2003 compared with $30.3 million as of December 31, 2002. The market value of the
derivative instruments offset the deposits by $2.0 million and $18.2 miltion as of December 31, 2003 and December 31, 2002, respectively.
These balances will generally decrease as interest rates rise and increase when interest rates fall. Also included in other assets at December
31, 2003 and December 31, 2002 are fixed assets, net of accumulated depreciation of $14.5 million and $5.4 million, respectively. Fixed
assets have increased primarily due to purchases of furniture and fixtures, computer equipment and office equipment related to the growth in the
number of our employees. Our receivables from securitizations were $6.2 million and $0.6 million at December 31, 2003 and December 31,
2002, respectively. These receivables represent cash due to us when we delivered the remaining $479.8 million in loans collateralizing NMFT
20034 in January 2004 as well as cash due to us on our mortgage securities. As of December 31, 2003 and 2002, we had a net deferred tax
asset of $10.5 million and $2.5 million, respectively. See Note 9 of the consolidated financial statements for details of the deferred tax asset.

Short-term Financing Arrangements Mortgage loan originations are funded with various financing facilities prior to securitization.
Repurchase agreements are used as interim, shortterm financing befare loans are transferred in our securitization transactions. The balances
outstanding under our shortterm arrangements fluctuate based on lending volume, cash flows from operating, investing and other financing
activities and equity transactions. As shown in Table 5, we have $130.1 million in immediately available funds, including $118.2 million in
cash. We have borrowed approximately $873 million of the $2.9 billion in committed lines of credit and mortgage securities repurchase
facilities, leaving approximately $2.0 billion available to support the mortgage lending and mortgage portfolio operations. See the “Liquidity
and Capital Resources” section of “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” for a further
discussion of liquidity risks and resources available to us.

Table 5 — Short-term Financing Resources

(in thousands)
Lending Value

Credit Limit of Collateral Borrowings Availability
Unrestricted cash $118,180
Lines of credit and mortgage and securities repurchase facilities $2,875,000 $884,438 $872,536 $ 11,902
Total $2,875,000 $884,438 $872,536 $130,082

Asset-backed Bonds During 1997 and 1998, we completed the securitization of loans in transactions that were structured as financing
arrangements for accounting purposes. These non-recourse financing arrangements match the loans with the financing arrangement for long
periods of time, as compared to lines of credit and repurchase agreements that mature frequently with interest rates that reset frequently and
have liquidity risk in the form of margin calls. Under the terms of our asset-backed bonds we are entitled to repurchase the mortgage loan
collateral and repay the remaining bond obligations when the aggregate collateral principal balance falls below 35% of their original balance for
the loans in NHES 97-01 and 25% for the loans in NHES 97-02, 98-01 and 98-02. We have not exercised our right to repurchase any loans
and repay bond obligations.

On November 5, 2002 we resecuritized interest-only and prepayment penalty securities and issued NovaStar CAPS Certificate Series 2002-C1
in the amount of $68 million. On July 2, 2003, we resecuritized interest-only, prepayment penalty and subordinated mortgage securities of
NMFT 2003-2 and issued NovaStar NIMS Certificate Series 2003-N1 in the amount of $54 million. The resecuritizations were structured as
secured borrowings for financial reporting and income tax purposes. In accordance with SFAS No. 140, control over the transferred assets
was not surrendered and thus the transaction was considered financing for the mortgage securities.

Accounts Payable and Other Liabilities Included in accounts payable and other liabilities is the provision for removal of loans from
securitization trusts, accrued payroll, income taxes payable and other liabilities. A provision within the trust for each of our securitization
transactions gives us the right, not the obligation, to repurchase loans from the trust that are between 90 and 119 days delinquent. In
accordance with SFAS No. 140, we are required to record the loans that meet this definition and a corresponding liability to the trust on our




balance sheet at fair value. As of December 31, 2003 and December 31, 2002, our liability related to this provision was $14.5 million and
$11.5 million, respectively. This liability should generally increase as we continue to securitize the loans we originate. OQur accrued payroll
increased from $9.2 million at December 31, 2002 to $18.1 million at December 31, 2003 due primarily to our growth in number of employees.
Our current income tax liability was $7.9 million and $0.9 million as of December 31, 2003 and December 31, 2002, respectively. This
increase is attributable to the increase in income before taxes of NFI Holding Corporation.

Stockholders’ Equity The Board of Directors declared a two-for-one split of its common stock, providing shareholders of record as of
November 17, 2003, with one additional share of common stock for each share owned. The additional shares resulting from the split were
issued on December 1, 2003 increasing the number of common shares outstanding to 24.1 million shares. Prior year share amounts and
earnings per share disclosures have been restated to reflect the stock split.

The increase in our stockholders’ equity as of December 31, 2003 compared to December 31, 2002 is a result of the following:

* $112.0 miflion increase due to net income recognized for the year ended December 31, 2003,

* $15.1 million increase due to increase in unrealized gains on mortgage securities classified as available-for-sale.
* $9.5 million increase due to net settlements on cash flow hedges reclassified to earnings.

¢ $2.2 million decrease due to increase in unrealized losses on derivative instruments used in cash flow hedges.
* $93.9 million increase due to issuance of common stock.

¢ $1.3 million increase due to compensation recognized under stock option plan.

* $1.6 million increase due to exercise of stock options.

* $114.3 million decrease due to dividends accrued or paid on common stock.

* $0.1 million increase due to forgiveness of founders’ notes receivable.

Results of Operations

During the year ended December 31, 2003, we earned net income of $112.0 million, $4.91 per diluted share, compared with net income of
$48.8 million, $2.25 per diluted share and of $32.3 million, $1.51 per diluted share, for the same periods of 2002 and 2001, respectively.

Our primary sources of revenue are interest earned on our mortgage loan and securities portfolios, fees from borrowers and gains on the sales
and securitizations of mortgage loans. Earnings increased during 2003 as compared to 2002 and 2001 due primarily to higher volumes of
average mortgage securities held and mortgage loan originations securitized. The effects of the higher mortgage security volume is displayed
in Table 6. Details regarding higher mortgage loan origination volumes and gains on securitization of these assets are shown in Tables 1, 8 and 9.

As discussed under “Significance of Estimates and Critical Accounting Policies,” prior to 2003, we accounted for stock-based compensation
plans under the recognition and measurement provisions of APB No. 25 and related interpretations. During the fourth quarter of 2003, we
adopted the fair value recognition provisions of SFAS No. 123, We selected the modified prospective method of adoption described in SFAS
No. 148. Under this method, the change is retroactive to January 1, 2003 and compensation cost recognized in 2003 is the same as that
which would have been recognized had the fair value method of SFAS No. 123 been applied from its original effective date. In adopting SFAS
No. 123 retroactive to January 1, 2003, we recorded a net credit (reversal of expense) to compensation and benefits expense of $7.1 million
relating to the nine months ended September 30, 2003. Results for prior years have not been restated.

Net Interest Income

Our securities primarily represent our ownership in the net cash flows of underlying mortgage loan collateral in excess of bond expenses and
cost of funding. The cost of funding is indexed to one-month LIBOR. As one-month LIBOR decreased dramatically in 2001 and 2002, the net
cash flows we received increased correspondingly. On the other hand, the coupon on the mortgage loan collateral has adjusted more slowly.
Therefore, the accretable yield (interest rate) on our older securities significantly increased during 2001 and 2002. Our older securities contin-
ue to experience unusually high yields. The spread on our new mortgage loans has returned to expected or normal levels as the coupon on
the mortgage securities has adjusted downward. Additionally, in 2002 we began transferring interest rate agreements, at the time of securiti-
zation, into the securitization trusts to help reduce interest rate risk and to decrease the volatility of the future cash flows on our mortgage

securities. As a result, future interest income on our mortgage securities is expected to be less volatile.
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While the spreads on the newer securities have decreased, the overall interest income continues to be high due to the sizeable increase in

our mortgage securities retained. Based on these factors, as shown in Table 6, we experienced a decrease in the average net yield on our
securities from 40.6% for the year ended December 31, 2002 to 31.3% for the same period of 2003. Mortgage security net yield for the
year ended December 31, 2001 was 14.5%

The overall dallar volume of interest income has increased primarily because the size of our mortgage securities portfolio has increased
significantly duting the past year. As shown in Tables 6 and 7, the average value of our mortgage securities increased from $132.3 million
and $67.6 million during the years ended December 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively, to $288.4 million during the year ended December 31,
2003. The average balance of mortgage loans collateralizing our securities increased from $2.1 billion in 2002 to $4.3 billion in 2003. We
expect to increase the amount of mortgage securities we own as we securitize the mortgage loans we originate.

As previously discussed, the trust that issues our interest-only securities owns interest rate agreements. These agreements reduce interest
rate risk within the trust and, as a result, the cash flows we receive on our interest-only securities are less volatile as interest rates change.

Net interest income on mortgage loans represents income on loans held-for-sale during their warehouse period as well as loans held-in-portfolio,
which are maintained on our balance sheet as a result of the four securitization transactions we executed in 1997 and 1998. Net interest
income on mortgage loans before other expense increased from $25.8 million and $20.7 million for the years ended December 31, 2002
and 2001, respectively to $39.9 million for the same period of 2003. The net interest income from mortgage loans is primarily driven by loan
volume and the amount of time held-for-sale loans are in the warehouse.

Future net interest income will be dependent upon the size and volume of our mortgage securities and loan portfolios and economic conditions.
Table 6 is a summary oftthe interest income and expense related to our mortgage securities and the related vields as a percentage of the fair

market value of these securities for the three years ended December 31, 2003.

Table 6 — Mortgage Securities Interest Analysis

(dollars in thousands)
December 31,

2003 2002 2001

Average fair market value of' mortgage securities $288,361 $132,250 $67,588
Average borrowings 222,653 89,612 37,004
Interest income 98,804 56,481 11,706
Interest expense 8,676 2,834 1,911
Net interest income S 90,128 S 53,647 $ 9,795
Yields:

Interest income 34.3% 42.7% 17.3%

Interest expense 3.9 3.2 5.2

Net interest spread 30.4% 39.5% 12.1%
Net Yield 31.3% 40.6% 14.5%

All of NovaStar's portfolio income comes from mortgage loans either directly (mortgage loans held-in-portfolic) or indirectly (mortgage
securities). Table 7 attempts to look through the balance sheet presentation of the Company's portfolio income and present income as a
percentage of average assets under management. This metric allows the Company to be more easily compared to other finance companies
or financial institutions that use on balance sheet portfolio accounting, where return on assets is a common performance calculation,

The net interest income for mortgage securities, mortgage loans held-for-sale and mortgage loans held-in-portfalio reflect the income after
interest expense, hedging, servicing, prepayment penalty income and credit expense (mortgage insurance and provision to loss reserve).
Table 7 shows the net vield in both assets under management and the return on assets during the three years ended December 31, 2003.



Table 7 — Mortgage Portfolio Management Net Interest Income Analysis

(dollars in thousands)
Mortgage Mortgage Loans Mortgage Loans
Securities Held-for-Sale  Held-in-Portfolio Total
For the Year Ended December 31, 2003:
Interest income S 98,804 $ 60,878 $ 10,738 S 170,420
interest expense:
Short-term borrowings (Al 3,450 20,060 — 23,510
Asset-backed bonds 5,226 — 2,269 7,495
Cash flow hedging net settiements — 2,871 6,488 9,359
Total interest expense 8,676 22,931 8,757 40,364
Mortgage portfolio net interest income before other expense 90,128 37,947 1,981 130,056
Other expense (B) — (11,507) {895) (12,402)
Mortgage portfolio net interest income S 90,128 S 26,440 $ 1,086 S 117,654
Average balance of the underlying loans $4,316,599 $792,991 $116,048 $5,225,638
Net interest yield on assets 2.09% 3.33% 0.94% 2.25%
For the Year Ended December 31, 2002:
Interest income S 56,481 $ 33,736 S 16,926 S 107,143
Interest expense:
Shortterm borrowings (A} 2,107 10,406 — 12,513
Asset-backed bonds 727 — 4,195 4922
Cash flow hedging net settlements — 1,672 8,621 10,293
Total interest expense 2,834 12,078 12,816 27,728
Mortgage portfolio net interest income before other expense 53,647 21,658 4,110 79,415
Other expense (B) — (11,782) (1,624) {13,406)
Mortgage portfolio net interest income S 53647 S 9,876 S 2,486 S 66,009
Average balance of the underlying loans $2,080,955 $395,394 $172,954 $2,649,303
Net interest yield on assets 2.58% 2.50% 1.44% 2.49%
For the Year Ended December 31, 2001:
Interest income S 11,706 $ 19,507 S 26,691 S 57,904
Interest expense:
Short-term borrowings (A) 1,911 8,546 - 10,457
Asset-backed bonds —_ — 14,874 14,874
Cash flow hedging net settlements — — 2,035 2,035
Total interest expense 1,911 8,546 16,909 27,366
Mortgage portfolio net interest income before other expense 9,795 10,961 9,782 30,538
Other expense (B) — (1,599) (6,156) (7,755)
Mortgage portfolio net interest income S 9,79 S 9,362 $ 3,626 S 22,783
Average balance of the underlying loans $1,037,352 $266,287 $191,972 81,495,611
Net interest yield on assets 0.94% 3.52% 1.89% 1.52%

(A) Primarily includes morigage loan and securities repurchase agreements.

(B) Other expense includes servicing expense, prepayment penalty tncome, net settlements on non-cash flow bedges and cvedst expense (morigage insurance and provision to loss reserve).
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Impact of Interest Rate Agreements We have executed interest rate agreements designed to mitigate exposure to interest rate risk on
shortterm borrowings. Interest rate cap agreements require us to pay either a onetime “up front” premium or a quarterly premium, while
allowing us to receive a rate that adjusts with LIBOR when rates rise above a certain agreed-upon rate. Interest rate swap agreements allow
us to pay a fixed rate of interest while receiving a rate that adjusts with one-month LIBOR. These agreements are used to alter, in effect, the
interest rates on funding costs to more closely match the yield on interest-earning assets. We incurred expenses of $9.4 million, $10.3 million
and $2.0 million related to these agreements for the three years ended December 31, 2003, 2002, and 2001, respectively. Fluctuations in
these expenses are solely dependent upon the movement in LIBOR as well as our average notional amount outstanding.

Credit Recoveries (Losses)

We originate and own loans in which the borrower possesses credit risk higher than that of conforming borrowers. Delinguent loans and losses
are expected to occur. Provisions for credit losses are made in amounts considered necessary to maintain an allowance at a level sufficient to
cover probable losses inherent in the loan portfolio. Charge-offs are recognized at the time of foreclosure by recording the value of real estate
owned property at its estimated realizable value. One of the principal methods used to estimate expected losses is a delinquency migration
analysis. This analysis takes into consideration historical information regarding foreciosure and loss severity experience and applies that
information to the portfolio at the reporting date.

We use several techniques to mitigate credit losses including pre-funding audits by quality control personnel and in-depth appraisal reviews.
Another loss mitigation technique allows a borrower to sell their property for less than the outstanding foan bafance prior to foreclosure in
transactions known as shart sales, when it is believed that the resulting loss is less than what would be realized through foreclosure. Loans
are charged off in full when the cost of pursuing foreclosure and liquidation exceed recorded balances. While short sales have served to
reduce the overall severity of losses incurred, they also accelerate the timing of losses. As discussed further under the caption “Premiums
for Mortgage Loan Insurance,” lender paid mortgage insurance is also used as a means of managing credit risk exposure. Generally, the
exposure to credit ioss on insured loans is considered minimal. Management also believes the loan servicing operation is an important
element to managing credit risk.

During the years ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001 we recognized credit recoveries (losses) of $0.4 million, $0.4 million and
$(3.6) million, respectively-and incurred net charge-offs of $1.3 million, $2.1 million and $5.7 million, respectively. A roliforward of the
allowance for credit losses for the three years ended December 31, 2003 is presented in Naote 2 ta the consolidated financial statements.

Fee Income

Fee income primarily consists of fees from five sources: broker fees, loan origination fees, service fee income, branch management fees
and prepayment penalty income.

Broker fees are paid by borrowers and other lenders for placing loans with third party investors (lenders) and are based on negotiated rates
with each lender to whom we broker loans. Revenue is recognized upon loan origination.

Loan origination fees represent fees paid to us by borrowers and are associated with the origination of mortgage loans. Loan arigination
fees are determined based on the type and amount of loans originated. Loan origination fees and direct origination costs on mortgage loans
held-in-portfolio are deferred and recognized over the life of the loan using the level yield method. Loan origination fees and direct origination
costs on mortgage foans held-for-sale are deferred and considered as part of the carrying value of the loan when sold.

Service fees are paid to us by either the investor on mortgage loans serviced or the borrower. Fees paid by investors on loans serviced are
determined as a percentage of the principal coliected for the loans serviced and are recognized in the period in which payments on the loans
are received. Fees paid by borrowers on loans serviced are considered ancillary fees related to loan servicing and include late fees, processing
fees and, for loans held-in-portfolio, prepayment penalties. Revenue is recognized on fees received from borrowers when an event occurs that
generates the fee and they are considered toa be collectible.



Affiliated branch management fees are charged to affiliated mortgage brokers to manage their administrative operations, which include providing
accounting, payroll, human resources, loan investor management and license management. The amount of the fees is agreed upon when
entering a contractual agreement with affiliated mortgage brokers and are recognized as services are rendered.

Prepayment penalty income are the fees we require the borrower to pay if they pay off their loan early in the loan’s life, generally within two
years of origination. This income serves to mitigate and offset prepayment risk and the amortization expense of premiums we paid to toan
brokers. The penalty is generally six months of interest on 80% of the unpaid principal at prepayment. Prepayment penally income was
$311,000, $432,000 and $790,000 during the years ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively.

Fee income increased from $36.0 million and $21.0 million for the twelve months ended December 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively, to
$68.3 million for the same period of 2003 due to the following reasons:

* Loans originated, including conforming loans, increased from $2.8 billion and $1.3 billion for the twelve months ended December 31, 2002
and 2001, respectively, to $6.0 billion for the same period of 2003.

« Qur servicing portfolio increased from $3.7 billion and $2.0 billion for the year ended December 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively, to
§7.2 billion for the year ended December 31, 2003.

¢ The number of NHMI LLC branches increased from 207 and 108 at December 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively, to 423 at December 31,
2003.

Gains on Sales of Mortgage Assets and Losses on Derivative Instruments

We execute securitization transactions in which we transfer mortgage loan collateral to an independent trust. The trust holds the mortgage
loans as collateral for the securities it issues to finance the sale of the mortgage loans. In those transactions, certain securities are issued to
entities unrelated to us, and we retain the interest-only and non-investment grade subordinated securities. In addition, we continue to service
the loan collateral. These transactions were structured as sales for accounting and income tax reporting during the years ended December 31,
2003, 2002 and 2001. Whole foan sales have also been executed whereby we sell loans to third parties. in the outright sales of mortgage
loans, we retain no assets or servicing rights. Table S provides a summary of mortgage loans sold outright and transferred in securifizations.

During the third quarter of 2001, we resecuritized AAArated interest-only and prepayment penalty securities issued in 2000. This transaction,
CAPS 2001-1, was structured as a sale for financial reporting and income tax purposes. Senior bonds in the amount of $29.3 million were
sold to the public. We retained a subordinated interest, the CAPS 2001-1 C1 bond, and recognized a gain of $14.9 million. For tax purposes,
this gain was capital in nature and offsets existing capital losses we incurred in 1998. In October 2002, the senior bond was fully repaid and
the AAA-rated interest-only and prepayment penalty securities were transferred back to us by the trust.

We have entered into derivative instrument contracts that do not meet the requirements for hedge accounting freatment, but contribute to our
overall risk management strategy by serving to reduce interest rate risk related to short-term borrowing rates. Changes in the fair value of
these derivative instruments are credited or charged to current earnings. As interest rates have decreased since December 31, 2001, we
recognized losses of $30.8 million and $36.8 million in 2003 and 2002, respectively, refiective of the corresponding decrease in fair value of
these non-hedge derivative instruments. Qur loss on derivative instruments during 2001 was $4.0 million.

Table 8 provides the components of our gains on sales of mortgage assets and losses on derivative instruments.
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Table 8 — Gains on Sales of Mortgage Assets and Losses on Derivative Instruments

(in thousands)

For the Year Ended December 31,

2003 2002 2001
Gains on sales of mortgage loans transferred in securitizations $136,302 $47,894 $21,730
Gains on sales of martgage loans to third parties ~ nonconforming 3,404 2,288 954
Gains on sales of mortgage loans to third parties - conforming 6,942 3,903 171
Gain on sale of mortgage securities — — 14,946
Losses on sales of real estate owned (2,643) (791) (454)
Gains on sales of mortgage assets 144,005 53,305 37,347
Losses on derivatives {30,837) (36,841) (3,953)
Net gains on sales of mortgage assets and derivative instruments §113,168 516,464 $33,394

Table 9 — Mortgage Loan Sales and Securitizations

{(dollars in thousands)

Outright Mortgage Loan Sales {A)

For the Year Ended Principal Percent of Net Gain {Loss) Weighted Average
December 31, Amount Total Sales Recognized Price To Par
2003 $151,210 2.8% $3,404 1041
2002 $142,159 8.4% $2,299 102.9
2001 $ 73,324 5.7% S 954 102.1
Mortgage Loans Transferred in Securitizations
Weighted Average Assumptions Underlying
Initial Value of Mortgage Securities

Initial Value Constant Expected Total Credit
For the Year Ended Principal Percent of Net Gain of Mortgage Prepayment Losses, Net of
December 31, Amount Total Sales Recognized Securities Rate Discount Rate Mortgage Insurance
2003 $5,319,435 97.2% $136,302 $299,752 26 22% 3.61%
2002 $1,560,001 91.6% $ 47,894 $ 92,903 28 21% 1.50%
2001 $1,215,100 84.3% $ 21,730 $ 62,862 28 23% 1.20%

(A) Does not include conforming loan sales.



Premiums for Mortgage Loan Insurance

The use of mortgage insurance is one method of managing the credit risk in the mortgage asset portfolio. Premiums for mortgage insurance
on loans maintained on our balance sheet are paid by us and are recorded as a portfolio cost and included in the income statement under the
caption “Premiums for Mortgage Loan Insurance.” These premiums totaled $3.1 million, $2.3 million and $2.7 million in 2003, 2002 and
2001, respectively. We received mortgage insurance proceeds on claims filed of $1.9 million, $2.1 million and $3.7 million in 2003, 2002
and 2001, respectively.

Many of the mortgage loans that serve as collateral for our mortgage securities carry mortgage insurance. When loans are securitized in
transactions treated as sales, the obligation to pay mortgage insurance premiums is legally assumed by the trust. Therefore, we have no
obligation to pay for mortgage insurance premiums on these loans.

We intend to continue to use mortgage insurance coverage as a credit management tool as we continue to onginate and securitize mortgage
loans. The percentage of loans with mortgage insurance has decreased in 2003 and generally should be lower than 50% in the future.

For the 2003-1, 2003-2, 2003-3 and 2003-4 securitizations, the mortgage loans that were transferred into the trusts had mortgage insurance
coverage at the time of transfer of 64%, 48%, 46% and 27%, respectively. We have the risk that mortgage insurance providers will revise
their guidelines to an extent where we will no longer be able to acquire coverage on all of our new production. Similarly, the providers may
also increase insurance premiums to a point where the cost of coverage outweighs its benefit. We monitor the mortgage insurance market
and currently anticipate being able to obtain affordable coverage on a substantial portion of our future production to the extent we deem

it is warranted.

General and Administrative Expenses

The main categories of our general and administrative expenses are compensation and benefits, loan expense, travel and public relations,
office administration and professional and outside services. Compensation and benefits includes employee base salaries, benefit costs and
incentive compensation awards. For discussion on stock-based compensation expense included in compensation and benefits, see discussion
of the adoption of SFAS No. 123 under “Significance of Estimates and Critical Accounting Policies” and “Results of Operations.” Loan expense
primarily includes expenses relating to the underwriting of mortgage loans that do not fund successfully. Travel and public relations primarily
includes travel related expenses and promotional and marketing expenses. Office administration includes items such as rent, depreciation,
telephone, office supplies, postage, delivery, maintenance and repairs. Professional and outside services include fees for legal, accounting
and other consulting services. In the normal course of business, fees are incurred for professional services related to general corporate
matters and specific transactions.

The increase in general and administrative expenses from $46.5 million in 2001 to $84.6 miilion in 2002 and to $174.4 million in 2003 is
attributable to our new retail lines of business, growth in our wholesale business, our expanding servicing operations and growth in our branch
operations. As a result of this growth, we employed 1,476 people as of December 31, 2003, compared with 944 and 379 as of December
31, 2002 and 2001, respectively. Note 12 to the consolidated financial statements presents a condensed income statement for our three
segments, detailing our expenses by segment.

The loan costs of production table below includes all costs paid and fees collected during the loan origination cycle, including loans that do
not fund. This distinction is important as we can only capitalize as deferred broker premium and costs, those costs (net of fees) directly
associated with a “funded” loan. Costs associated with oans that do not fund are recognized immediately as a component of general and
administrative expenses. For loans held-for-sale, deferred net costs are recognized when the related loans are sold outright or transferred
in securitizations. For loans held-in-portfolio, deferred net costs are recognized over the life of the loan as a reduction to interest income.
The cost of our production is also critical to our financial results as it is a significant factor in the gains we recognize. Increased efficiencies
in the nonconforming lending operation correlate to lower general and administrative costs and higher interest income and gain on sales of
mortgage assets.
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Table 10 — Loan Costs of Production, as a Percent of Principal

Gross Loan Premium Paid to Broker, Total
Production Net of Fees Collected  Acquisition Cost
2003 1.69 0.71 2.40Q
2002 1.93 0.78 2.71
2001 1.98 0.63 2.61

Maortgage Loan Servicing

Loan servicing is a critical part of our business. In the opinion of management, maintaining contact with borrowers is vital in managing
credit risk and in borrower retention. Nonconforming borrowers are prone to late payments and are more likely to default on their obligations
than conventional borrowers. We strive to identify issues and trends with borrowers early and take quick action to address such matters.
Our annualized costs of servicing per unit decreased from $286 and $267 at December 31, 2001 and 2002, respectively, to 5263 at
December 31, 2003.

Table 11 — Summary of Servicing Operations

(dollars in thousands, except per loan cost)

2003 2002 2001
Amount Per Unit Amount Per Unit Amount Per Unit
Unpaid principal $7,206,113 $3,657,640 $1,994,448
Number of loans 54,196 28,849 17,425
Servicing income, before amortization of mortgage servicing rights S 20,486 $378 S 12,79 S444 $ 8213 $471
Costs of servicing 14,261 263 7,703 267 4,976 286
Net servicing income, before amortization of mortgage servicing rights 6,225 115 5,093 177 3,237 185
Ameortization of mortgage servicing rights 8,995 166 4,609 160 2,131 122
Net servicing income (loss) S (2,770) $(51) $ 484 $ 17 $ 1,106 $ 63

Branches

We operate our mortgage brokerage unit under the name NovaStar Home Mortgage, Inc. (NHMI). Branch operations (offices) are divided into
two groups: 1) branches operating under NHMI, and 2) branches operating as separate companies with an administrative relationship with
NHMI, identified as NHMI LLC (Limited Liability Company) branches.

The NHMI branches are considered departmental functions of NHMI under which the branch manager (department head) is an employee of
NHMI and receives compensation based on the profitability of the branch (department) as bonus compensation. NHMI branches are included
in the NovaStar Financial consalidated financial statements.

LLC branches are established: through LLC agreements entered into between solicited brokers and NHMI. The LLC agreements provide for
initial capitalization and membership interests of 99.9% to the broker {branch manager) and 0.1% to NHMI. NHMI provides accounting, payroll,
human resources, loan investor management and license management in conjunction with separate contractual agreements. We account for
our minority interest in the LLC agreements using the equity method of accounting.

As of December 31, 2003 there were a total of 432 active branches, 9 of these were NHMI branches and 423 were NHMI LLC branches.
As of December 31, 2002 there were a total of 216 active branches, 9 of these were NHMI branches and 207 were NHMI LLC branches.



The NHM! and LLC branch offices offer conforming and nonconforming loans to potential borrowers. Loans are brokered for approved
investors, including NovaStar Mortgage, inc. (NMI). Of the $5.3 billion and $2.8 billion noncanforming loans we originated, 23% and 20% were
brokered to NMI from the branches in 2003 and 2002, respectively.

fncome Taxes

NovaStar Financial, Inc. intends to continue to operate and qualify as a Real Estate Investment Trust (REIT) under the requirements of the
Internal Revenue Code. Therefore, it will generally not be subject to federal income taxes at the corporate level on taxable income distributed
to stockholders. Requirements for qualification as a REIT include various restrictions on common stock ownership and the nature of the
assets and sources of income.

Below is a summary of the taxable net income available to common sharehoiders for the years ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001.

Table 12 — Taxable Net Income

{dollars in thousands)

For the Year Ended December 31,

2003 2002 2001
Consolidated net income $111,996 548,761 $32,308
Equity in net income of NFI Holding Corp. {20,051) 9,013 {1,723)
REIT net income 91,945 57,774 30,585
Adjustments to net income to compute taxable income 44 550 (8,301) (20,179}
Taxable income before preferred dividends 136,495 48,473 10,4086
Preferred dividends — - (5,164)
Estimated taxable income available to common shareholders $136,495 $48,473 $ 5,242
Estimated taxable income per common shareholder $ 558 $ 232 S 046

In order to qualify as a REIT, we must distribute 90 percent of our taxable income before the due date of our federal tax return, including
extensions. Additionally, for the REIT to avoid paying federal income tax, there are two other distribution requirements. First, in order to avoid
a 4 percent excise tax, the REIT must generally distribute at least 85 percent of its taxable income {plus undistributed prior year amounts) no
later than December 31 of the current year (or no later than 30 days after year end if certain requirements are met). Alternatively, in order to
avoid paying an income tax at the REIT level, we must distribute all of our taxable income before the timely filing of our tax return. This second
distribution requirement may be met by designating certain dividends paid in the following year as applying to the current year (“spillover
dividends”). This spillover dividend rule allows a REIT to pay dividends at regular intervals and amounts and avoid volatility in its dividend policy.

The dividend policy adopted by our Board applies the spillover dividend rules for purposes of managing the REIT distribution requirement and
in computing REIT taxable income. This policy better aligns dividends with economic income and allows us to better manage volatility in our
dividend payments.

We declared dividends of $2.15 per common share in 2002. Since it was our intent to distribute approximately 100% of our taxable income
in 2002, we declared a special dividend related to 2002 taxable income of $0.165 per common share on January 29, 2003.

NFI Holding Carporation, a wholly-owned subsidiary of NovaStar Financial, Inc., has not elected REIT-status and files a consolidated federal
income tax return with its subsidiaries. NFI Holding Corporation reported a net income (loss) before income taxes of $50.6 million and
($11.0) million for the years ended December 31, 2003 and 2002, respectively. As shown in our statement of income, this resufted in an
income tax expense (benefit) of $22.9 million and $(2.0) million for the years ended December 31, 2003 and 2002, respectively. We did not
report income tax expense (benefit) for the year ended December 31, 2001 due to the immaterial nature of the pretax income reported at
NFI Holding Corporation.
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Liquidity and Capital Resources

Liquidity means the need for, access to and uses of cash. Our primary needs for cash include the acquisition of mortgage loans, principal
repayment and interest:on borrowings, operating expenses and dividend payments. Substantial cash is required to support the operating
activities of the business, especially the mortgage origination operation. Mortgage asset sales, principal, interest and fees collected on
mortgage assets support cash needs. Drawing upon various borrawing arrangements typically satisfies major cash requirements. As shawn
in Table 5, we have $130.1 million in immediately available funds, including $118.2 million in cash.

Mortgage lending requires significant cash to fund loan originations. Our warehouse lending arrangements, including repurchase agreements,
support the mortgage lending operation. Our warehouse mortgage lenders allow us to borrow between 98% and 100% of the outstanding
principal. Funding for the difference — generally 2% of the principal - must come from other cash inflows. We use operating cash inflow in the
form of cash flow from mortgage securities, principal and interest on mortgage loans and fee income to support loan originations. In addition,
proceeds from equity offerings have been used to support operations. Our immediately available funds would support funding more than

$6.5 billion in loans, assuming no other demands on cash and assuming a 2% “haircut.”

Loans financed with warehouse and repurchase credit facilities are subject to changing market valuation and margin calls. The market value
of our loans is dependent on a variety of economic conditions, including interest rates (and borrower demand) and end investor desire and
capacity. Market values. have been consistent over the past three years. However, there is no certainty that the prices will remain constant.
To the extent the value of the loans declines significantly, we would be required to repay portions aof the amounts we have borrowed. The
value of our “recourse” loans {(classified as held-for-sale) as of December 31, 2003 would need to decline by nearly 19% before we would use
all immediately available funds, assuming no other constraints on our immediately available funds.

We have no recourse for loans financed with asset-backed bonds and, as such, there is minimal liquidity risk.

The derivative financial instruments we use also subject us to “margin call” risk. Under our interest rate swaps, we pay a fixed rate to the
counterparties while they pay us a floating rate. While floating rates are low, on a net basis we are paying the counterparty. In order to mitigate
credit exposure to us, the counterparty required us to post margin deposits with them. As of December 31, 2003, we have approximately
$20.9 million on deposit. Further declining interest rates would subject us to additional exposure for cash margin calls. However, the asset
side of the balance sheet should increase in value in a further declining interest rate scenario. Incoming cash on our mortgage loans and
securities is a principal source of cash. The volume of cash depends on, among other things, interest rates. While short-term interest rates
(the basis for our funding costs} are low and the coupon rates on our loans are high, our net interest margin (and therefore incoming cash
flow) is high. Severe andiimmediate changes in interest rates will impact the volume of our incoming cash flow. To the extent rates increase
dramatically, our funding costs will increase quickly. While many of our loans are adjustable, they typically will not reset as quickly as our
funding costs. This circumstance would temporarily reduce incoming cash flow. As noted above, derivative financial instruments are used to
mitigate the effect of interest rate volatility. In this rising rate situation, our interest rate swaps and caps would provide additional cash flows
to mitigate the lower cash on loans and securities.

Loans we originate can be sold to a third party, which also generates cash to fund on-going operations. When market prices exceed our
cost to originate, we believe we can operate in this manner, provided that the level of loan originations is at or near the capacity of its
production infrastructure,

Cash activity during the years ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001 is presented in the consolidated statement of cash flows.

As noted above, proceeds from equity offerings have supported our operations. Since inception, we have raised $220 million in net proceeds
through private and public equity offerings. Equity offerings provide another avenue as a future liquidity scurce.

Off Balance Sheet Arrangements

As discussed previously, we pool the loans we originate and securitize them to obtain long-term financing for the assets. The loans are
transferred to a trust where they serve as collateral for assetbacked bonds, which the trust issues to the public. Qur ability to use the
securitization capital market is critical to the operations of our business. Table 4 summarizes our off balance sheet securitizations.



External factors that are reasonably likely to affect our ability to continue to use this arrangement would be those factors that could disrupt the
securitization capital market. A disruption in the market could prevent us from being able to sell the securities at a favorable price, or at all.
Factors that could disrupt the securitization market include an international liquidity crisis such as occurred in the fall of 1998, a terrorist attack,
outbreak of war or other significant event risk, and market specific events such as a default of a comparable type of securitization. If we were
unable to access the securitization market, we may still be able to finance our mortgage operations by selling our loans to investors in the
whole loan market. We were able to do this following the liguidity crisis in 1998.

Specific items that may affect our ability to use the securitizations to finance our loans relate primarily to the performance of the loans that have
been securitized. Extremely poor loan performance may lead to poor bond performance and investor unwillingness to buy bonds supported
by our collateral. Our financial performance and condition has little impact on our ability to securitize, as evidenced by our ability to securitize
in 1998, 1999 and 2000 when our financial trend was weak.

We have commitments to borrowers to fund residential mortgage loans as well as commitments to purchase and sell mortgage loans to third
parties. As nonconforming mortgage loans are not readily convertible to cash and cannot readily be settled net, commitments to originate and
purchase such loans do not meet the definition of a derivative under accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.
Accordingly, they are not recorded in the consolidated financial statements. As of December 31, 2003, we had outstanding commitments to
originate and purchase loans of $228 mitlion and $60 million, respectively. We had no commitments to sell loans to third parties at December
31, 2003. As of December 31, 2002, we had outstanding commitments to originate, purchase and sell loans of $108 million, $16 million and
$98 million, respectively.

On November 20, 2003, we executed a securitization transaction accounted for as a sale of loans. We delivered $1.0 billion in loans
collateralizing NMFT Series 2003-4 {see Note 3 of the consolidated financial statements). On January 14, 2004, we delivered an additional
$479.8 million in loans collateralizing NMFT Series 2003-4.

Contractual Obligations

We have entered into certain long-term debt and lease agreements, which obligate us to make future payments to satisfy the related contractual
obligations. Notes 6 and 15 of the consolidated financial statements discuss these obligations in further detail.

The following table summarizes our contractual obligations with regard to our long-term debt and lease agreements as of December 31, 2003.

Table 13 — Contractual Obligations

(in thousands)

Payments Due by Period

Contractual Obligations Total Less than 1 Year 1-3 Years 4-5 Years After 5 Years
Shortterm borrowings $872,536 $872,536 — —_ —
Longterm debt (A) $132,980 $ 82,346 $28,909 $12,745 $8,980
Mortgage loan purchase commitments $ 60,000 $ 60,000 —_ — —_
Operating leases S 31,543 S 6,425 $10,855 $10,698 $3,565
Premiums due to counterparties related

to interest rate cap agreements S 3,459 S 1,568 $ 1,891 — -

(A) Repayment of the asset-backed bonds is dependent upon payment of the underlying morigage loans, which collateralize the debt. The repayment of these mortgage loans is affected by prepayments.

The Company has entered into various lease agreements in which the lessor agreed to repay the Company for certain existing lease obligations.
The Company received approximately $2.3 million and $62,000 related to these agreements in 2003 and 2002, respectively, and expects to
receive approximately $1.0 million in future payments through 2004 from the lessor unless the properties we previously occupied are subleased.
We entered into various sublease agreements for office space formerly occupied by us. We received approximately $537,000 in 2003 related
to these agreements and expect to receive approximately $61,000 in future payments through 2004.
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Inflation

Virtually all of our assets and liabilities are financial in nature. As a result, interest rates and other factors drive company performance far
more than does inflation. Changes in interest rates do not necessarily correlate with inflation rates or changes in inflation rates. Our financial
statements are prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America and dividends are based
on taxable income. In each case, financial activities and balance sheet are measured with reference to historical cost or fair market value
without considering inflation.

Impact of Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements

Note 1 of the consolidated financial statements describe certain recently issued accounting pronouncements. Management believes the
implementation of these pronouncements and others that have gone into effect since the date of these reports will not have a material impact
on the consolidated financial statements.

Interest Rate/Market Risk
Our investment policy sets the following general goals:

(1) Maintain the net interest margin between assets and liabilities, and
(2) Diminish the effect of changes in interest rate levels on our market value

Loan Price Volatility Under our current mode of operation, we depend heavily on the market for wholesale nonconforming mortgage loans.
To conserve capital, we may sell loans we originate. Financial results will depend, in part, on the ability to find purchasers for the loans at
prices that cover origination expenses. Exposure to loan price volatility is reduced as we acquire and retain mortgage loans.

Interest Rate Risk When interest rates on our assets do not adjust at the same rates as our liabilities or when the assets have fixed rates
and the liabilities are adjusting, future earnings potential is affected. We express this interest rate risk as the risk that the market value of
assets will increase or decrease at different rates than that of the liabilities. Expressed another way, this is the risk that net asset value will
experience an adverse change when interest rates change. We assess the risk based on the change in market values given increases and
decreases in interest rates. We also assess the risk based on the impact to net income in changing interest rate environments.

Management primarily uses financing sources where the interest rate resets frequently. As of December 31, 2003, borrowings under all
financing arrangements adjust daily or monthly. On the other hand, very few of the mortgage assets we own adjust on a monthly or daily
basis. Most of the mortgage loans contain features where their rates are fixed for some period of time and then adjust frequently thereafter.
For example, one of our loan products is the “2/28" loan. This loan is fixed for its first two years and then adjusts every six months thereafter.

While shortterm borrowing rates are low and long-term asset rates are high, this portfolio structure produces good results. However, if
short-term interest rates rise rapidly, earning potential is significantly affected, as the asset rate resets would lag the borrowing rate resets.

Interest Rate Sensitivity Analysis To assess interest sensitivity as an indication of exposure to interest rate risk, management relies
on models of financial information in a variety of interest rate scenarios. Using these models, the fair value and interest rate sensitivity of
each financial instrument, or groups of similar instruments is estimated, and then aggregated to form a comprehensive picture of the risk
characteristics of the balance sheet. The risks are analyzed on both an income and market value basis. The following are summaries of
the analysis.




Table 14 — Interest Rate Sensitivity - Income

(dollars in thonsands)
Basis Point Increase {Decrease) in Interest Rate (A}

{200} (C) (100) 100 200

As of December 31, 2003:

Net interest income N/A $15,546 $(11,393) $20,777}
Percent change in net interest income from base N/A 5.6% 4.1)% {7.5%
Percent change of capital (B) N/A 5.2% (3.8% (6.9)%
As of December 31, 2002:

Net interest income N/A $8,894 $(6,946) §(13,277)
Percent change in net interest income from base N/A 7.6% (5.9% (11.3%
Percent change of capital (B) N/A 4.9% {3.8)% (7.2)%

(A) Net interest income (income from assets loss expense from fiabilities and expense from interest vate agreements) tn a pavallel shifi in the yield curve, up and down 19 and 2%.
(B) Toral change in estimated spread income as a percent of total stockbolders’ equity as of December 31.

(C) A decrease in interest vates by 200 basis points (2%) would imply rates on linbilities at or below zero,

Table 15 — Interest Rate Sensitivity - Market Value

(dollars in thousands)
Basis Point Increase {Decrease) in Interest Rate {A)

{200) (C) {100} 100 200
As of December 31, 2003:
Change in market values of:
Assets N/A $99,164 $(135,872) $(296,278)
Liabilities N/A (5,325) 6,245 12,627
interest rate agreements N/A (90,590 98,484 208,805
Cumulative change in market value N/A $ 3,249 $ (31,143 $ (74,846)
Percent change of market value portfclio equity (B) N/A 1.0% (9.1% (21.9%
As of December 31, 2002:
Change in market values of:
Assets N/A $16,449 § (49,343) $(119,232)
Liabilities N/A 2,311) 2,451 4,969
Interest rate agreements N/A (36,249) 37,930 76,873
Cumulative change in market value N/A $(22,111) S (8,962 $ (37,390)
Percent change of market value portfolio equity (B) N/A (10.9% (4.4)% (18.4)%

(A) Change in market value of assers, liabilities or interest vate agreements in a parallel shift in the yield curve, up and down 1% and 2%.
(B) Toral change in estimated market value as a percent of market value portfolio equity as of December 31.
(C) A decrease in intevest rates by 200 basis pornts (29%) would imply rates on ftabilities ar or below zero.
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The values under the:headings “100,” “200,” “(100)” and “(200)" are management's estimates of the income and change in market value of
those same assets, liabilities and interest rate agreements assuming that interest rates were 100 and 200 basis points, or 1 and 2 percent
higher and lower. The cumulative change in income or market value represents the change in income or market value of assets, net of the
change in income or market value of liabilities and interest rate agreements.

Hedging In order to address a mismatch of assets and fiabilities, the hedging section of the investment policy is followed, as approved by the
Board. Specifically, the interest rate risk management program is formulated with the intent to offset the potential adverse effects resulting
from rate adjustment limitations on mortgage assets and the differences between interest rate adjustment indices and interest rate adjustment
periods of adjustable-rate mortgage loans and related borrowings.

We use interest rate cap and swap contracts to mitigate the risk of the cost of variable rate liabilities increasing at a faster rate than the
earnings on assets during a period of rising rates. In this way, management intends generally to hedge as much of the interest rate risk as
determined to be in our best interest, given the cost of hedging transactions and the need to maintain REIT status.

We seek to build a balance sheet and undertake an interest rate risk management program that is likely, in management’s view, to enable us
o maintain an equity liquidation value sufficient to maintain operations given a variety of potentially adverse circumstances. Accordingly, the
hedging program addresses both income preservation, as discussed in the first part of this section, and capital preservation concemns.

Interest rate cap agreements are legal contracts between us and a third party firm or “counterparty.” The counterparty agrees to make
payments to us in the future should the one- or three-month LIBOR interest rate rise above the strike rate specified in the contract. We make
either quarterly premium payments or have chosen to pay the premiums at the beginning to the counterparties under contract. Each contract
has either a fixed or amortizing notional face amount on which the interest is computed, and a set term to maturity. When the referenced
LIBOR interest rate rises above the contractual strike rate, we earn cap income, Payments on an annualized basis equal the contractual notional
face amount times the difference between actual LIBOR and the strike rate. Interest rate swaps have similar characteristics. However, interest
rate swap agreements allow us to pay a fixed rate of interest while receiving a rate that adjusts with one-month LIBOR,

The following table summarizes the key contractual terms associated with our interest rate risk management contracts. Substantially all of the
pay-fixed swaps and interest rate caps are indexed to one-month and three-month LIBOR.

We have determined the following estimated net fair value amounts by using available market information and appropriate valuation methodologies
as of December 31, 2003.

Table 16 — Interest Rate Risk Management Contracts

(dollars in thousands)
Maturity Range

Net Fair Total Notional
Value Amount 2004 2005 2006

Payfixed swaps: $(8,648)

Contractual maturity $1,530,000 $265,000 $800,000 $465,000

Weighted average pay rate 2.9% 4.9% 2.3% 2.8%

Weighted average receive rate 1.1% (A) (A) (A)
Interest rate caps: $6,679

Contractual maturity $805,144 5155,144 $450,000 $200,000

Weighted average strike rate 1.7% 1.8% 1.6% 2.0%

(A) The pay-fixed swaps veceive rate is indexed to one-month and three-month LIBOR,



Consolidated Balance Sheets

(dollars in thousands, except share amounts)
December 31,

2003 2002

Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 118,180 S 79,742
Mortgage loans — held-for-sale 697,992 983,633
Mortgage loans - held-in-portfolio 94,717 149,876
Mortgage securities — available-for-sale 382,287 178,879
Servicing related advances 19,281 11,875
Mortgage servicing rights 19,685 7,906
Accrued interest receivable 3,739 7,673
Assets acquired through foreclosure 3,192 5,935
Other assets 60,884 26,978
Total assets $1,399,957 $1,452,497
Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity
Liabilities:

Shortterm borrowings secured by mortgage loans S 639,852 S 927,472

Short-term borrowings secured by mortgage securities 232,684 98,064

Assetbacked bonds secured by mortgage loans 89,384 143,459

Asset-backed bonds secured by mortgage securities 43,596 56,233

Accounts payable and other liabilities 63,658 27,244

Dividends payable 30,559 16,768
Total liabilities 1,099,733 1,269,240
Commitments and contingencies
Stockholders’ equity:

Capital stock, $0.01 par value, 50,000,000 shares authorized:

Common stock, 24,447,315 and 20,959,820 shares issued and outstanding, respectively 245 210
Additional paid-in capital 231,294 133,253
Accumulated deficit (15,522) (12,026)
Accumulated other comprehensive income 85,183 62,935
QOther {976) (1,115)

Total stockholders’ equity 300,224 183,257
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity $1,399,957 $1,452,497

See notes 1o consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statements of Income

(dollars in thousands, except per share antounts)

For the Year Ended December 31,

2003 2002 2001

Interest income:

Mortgage securities $ 98,804 $56,481 $11,706

Mortgage loans held-for-sale 60,878 33,736 19,507

Mortgage loans held-in-portfolio 10,738 16,926 26,691
Total interest income 170,420 107,143 57,904
Interest expense:

Short-term borrowings secured by mortgage loans 20,060 10,406 8,546

Shart-term borrowings secured by martgage securities 3,450 2,107 1,911

Asset-backed bonds secured by mortgage loans 2,269 4,195 14,874

Assetbacked bonds secured by mortgage securities 5,226 727 —

Net settlernents of derivative instruments used in cash flow hedges 9,359 10,293 2,035
Total interest expense 40,364 27,728 27,366
Net interest income before credit recoveries (losses) 130,056 79,415 30,538
Credit recoveries (losses) 389 432 (3,608)
Net interest income 130,445 79,847 26,930
Gains on sales of mortgage assets 144,005 53,305 37,347
Losses on derivative instruments (30,837) (36,841) (3,953)
Fee income 68,341 35,983 20,994
Premiums for mortgage loan insurance (3,102) (2,326) (2,655)
Other income, net 412 1,356 1,856
General and administrative expenses:

Compensation and benefits 89,954 49,060 26,934

Loan expense 26,174 8,002 1,865

Travel and public relations 23,339 11,400 7,008

Office administration 22,945 10,092 6,394

Professianal and cutside services 7,482 3,402 1,989

Other 4514 2,638 2,315
Total general and administrative expenses 174,408 84,594 46,505
Income before income tax expense (benefit) and cumulative effect

of a change in accounting principle 134,856 46,730 34,014
Income tax expense (benefit) 22,860 (2,031) —
Income before cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle 111,996 48,761 34,014
Cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle — — (1,706)
Net income 111,996 48,761 32,308
Dividends on preferred shares — — (5,025)
Net income available to common shareholders $111,996 $48,761 §27,283
Basic earnings per share - before cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle S 5.04 $ 235 S 1.68
Basic loss per share due to cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle — — (0.08)
Basic earnings per share S 504 § 2.35 S 161
Diluted earnings per share — before cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle § 4091 § 225 S 1.59
Diluted loss per share due to cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle — — (0.08)
Diluted earnings per share S 491 S 2.25 S 131
Weighted average basic shares outstanding 22,220 20,758 20,050
Weighted average diluted shares outstanding 22,821 21,660 21,382
Dividends declared per common share S 5.04 S 215 S 048

See notes to consolidated financial statements,




Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ Equity

(dotlars in thousands, except per shave amounts)

) Accumulated
Convertible Additional Other Total
Preferred Common Paid-in  Accumulated Comprehensive Stockholders’
Stock Stock Capital Deficit Income QOther Equity
Balance, January 1, 2001 $43 $122 $141,936 $(37,976) $10,168 $(6,374) $107,919
Common stock repurchased, 230,294 shares — 2) (652) — - — (654)
Return of common stock underlying founders’ notes

receivable, 578,664 shares — (6) (4,334) — — 4,340 —_
Forgiveness of founders’ notes receivable — — — — — 139 139
Payment of founders’ notes receivable - — — — — 641 641
Exercise of stock options, 228,278 shares — 2 852 — — — 854
Dividends on common stock ($0.48 per share) - — — (5,194) — — (5,194)
Dividends on preferred stock ($1.08 per share) — — — (5,025) — — (5,025)
Comprehensive income:

Net income 32,308 — 32,308

Qther comprehensive income — 991 (991)

Total comprehensive income 31,317
Balance, December 31, 2001 43 116 137,802 (15,887 9,177 (1,254) 129,997
Conversion of preferred stock to common,

8,571,428 shares 43) 86 {43) — — — —
Acquisition of warrants, 812,731 —_ — (9,499 — — — (9,499)
Conversion of 350,000 warrants for 421,406

shares of common stock — 4 (4) — — — —_
Forgiveness of founders' notes receivable — — — — — 138 139
Exercise of stock options, 358,476 shares — 4 1,782 — — — 1,786
Compensation recognized under stock option plan — — 3,215 — — — 3,215
Dividends on common stock ($2.15 per share) — — — {44,900) — — (44,900)
Increase in common stock held in rabbi trusts — — — — — 911) 911)
Increase in deferred compensation obligation — — — — — 911 911
Comprehensive income:

Net income 48,761 — 48,761

Other comprehensive income — 53,758 53,758

Total comprehensive income 102,519
Balance, December 31, 2002 — 210 133,253 {12,026) 62,935 {1,115) 183,257
Fargiveness of founders’ notes receivable — — — — — 139 139
Issuance of common stock, 3,188,620 shares — 32 93,889 — — — 93,921
Exercise of stock options, 298,875 shares — 3 1,644 —_ — —_ 1,647
Compensation recognized under stock option pian — — 1,310 —_ — — 1,310
Dividend equivalent rights (DERs) on vested options — — 1,198 (1,198) — — -
Dividends on common stock ($5.04 per share) — — — (114,294) — — (114,294)
Increase in common stock held in rabbi trusts — — — — — (3,145) (3,145)
increase in deferred compensation obligation — ~ — — — 3,145 3,145
Comprehensive income:

Net income 111,996 — 111,996

Other comprehensive income — 22,248 22,248

Total comprehensive income 134,244
Balance, December 31, 2003 S— §245 $231,294 §(15,522) $85,183 S (976) $300,224

See notes 1o consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

(in thousands) For the Year Ended December 31,
2003 2002 2001
Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income $111,996 $48,761 $32,308
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by (used in) operating activities:
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle — — 1,706
Amortization of premiums on mortgage assets 1,120 1,830 3,208
Amartization of martgage servicing rights 8,995 4,609 2,131
Accretion of available-for-sale securities (98,804) (56,481) (11,706}
Amortization of deferred debt issuance costs 1,100 172 1,022
Forgiveness of founders' promissory notes 139 139 139
Credit (recoveries) losses (389) (432) 3,608
Provision for deferred income taxes (5,848) (4,652) —
Proceeds from sale of mortgage loans heid-for-sale in securitizations 5,207,233 1,532,483 1,191,977
Proceeds from sale of mortgage loans held-for-sale to third parties 966,537 391,506 110,879
Originations of mortgage lcans heldfor-sale {6,066,002) {2,811,315) (1,403,289)
Repayments of mortgage loans held-for-sale 18,474 10,943 1,731
Gains on sales of mortgage assets (144,005) (53,305) (37,347)
L.osses on derivative instruments 30,837 36,841 3,953
Compensation recognized under stock option plan 1,310 3,215 —
Depreciation expense 3,872 1,203 940
Changes in:
Other assets (61,618) (56,085} (26,532)
QOther liabilities 33,394 (3,114) 1,325
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities 8,341 (953,582) (123,947)
Cash flows from investing activities:
Mortgage loan repayments - held-in-portfolio 49,101 65,505 125,198
Proceeds from paydowns on available-for-sale securities 200,024 100,071 40,190
Proceeds from sales of availablefor-sale securities — —_ 28,626
Proceeds from sales of assets acquired through foreclosure 6,719 14,876 20,466
Net assets acquired in acquisition of common stack of NF! Holding Corporation — — 872
Payment on founders’ promissory notes — — 641
Net cash provided by investing activities 255,844 180,452 215,993
Cash flows from financing activities:
Payments on asset-backed bonds (120,083} (86,434) (139,411)
Proceeds from asset-backed bonds 52,271 66,906 —
Change in shortterm borrowings (153,000) 882,186 81,450
Proceeds from issuance of capital stock and exercise of equity instruments, net of offering costs 94,321 1,786 854
Repurchase of warrants — (9,499) —
Dividends paid on preferred stock — (2,014} (3,150)
Dividends paid on common stock {99,256) (30,876) (2,836)
Common stock repurchases — — (654)
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities (225,747) 822,055 63,747)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 38,438 48,925 28,299
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 79,742 30,817 2,518
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year $118,180 §79,742 $30,817

See notes to consolidated financial statements.



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting and Reporting Policies

Financial Statement Presentation The Company’s consolidated financial statements have been prepared in conformity with accounting
principles generaily accepted in the United States of America and prevailing practices within the financial services industry. The preparation
of financial statements requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities
at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of income and expense during the period. The Company uses estimates
and employs the judgments of management in determining the amount of its allowance for credit losses, amortizing premiums or accreting
discounts on its mortgage assets, amortizing mortgage servicing rights and establishing the fair value of its mortgage securities, derivative
instruments, mortgage servicing rights and estimating appropriate accrual rates on mortgage securities. While the consolidated financial
statements and footnotes reflect the best estimates and judgments of management at the time, actual results couid differ significantly from
those estimates. For example, it is possible that credit losses or prepayments could rise to levels that would adversely affect profitability if
those levels were sustained for more than brief periods.

The consofidated financial statements of the Company include the accounts of all wholly-owned subsidiaries. Intercompany accounts and
transactions have been eliminated during consolidation.

Unconsolidated Affiliates The Company is party to limited liability company agreements (‘LLCs"), formed to facilitate the operation of retail
mortgage broker businesses as branch affiliates. The LLC agreements provide for initial capitalization and membership interests of $9.9%
to a branch manager and 0.1% to the Company. The LLCs broker loans to mortgage investors, including a subsidiary of the Company. The
Company provides accounting, payroll, human resources, loan investor management and license management in conjunction with separate
contractual agreements. The Company accounts for its interest in the LLC agreements using the equity method of accounting.

Cash and Cash Equivalents The Company considers investments with original maturities of three months or less at the date of purchase to
be cash equivalents.

Mortgage Loans Mortgage loans include loans originated by the Company and acquired in bulk pools from other originators and securities
dealers. Mortgage loans are recorded net of deferred loan origination fees and associated direct costs and are stated at amortized cost.
Mortgage loan origination fees and associated direct mortgage loan origination costs on mortgage loans held-in-portfolio are deferred and
recognized over the estimated life of the loan as an adjustment to yield using the level yield method. Mortgage loan origination fees and direct
mortgage loan origination costs on mortgage loans held-for-sale are deferred until the related loans are sold. Mortgage loans held-for-sale are
carried at the lower of cost or market determined on an aggregate basis.

Interest is recognized as revenue when earned according to the terms of the mortgage loans and when, in the opinion of management, it is
collectible. For all mortgage loans held-for-sale and only mortgage loans held-in-portfolio which do not carry mortgage insurance, the accrual
of interest on loans is discontinued when, in management’s opinion, the interest is not collectible in the normal course of business, but in no
case beyond when a loan becomes ninety days delinquent. For mortgage loans held-in-portfolic, which do carry mortgage insurance, the
accrual of interest is only discontinued when in management's opinion, the interest is not collectible in the ordinary course of business.
Interest collected on non-accrual loans is recognized as income upon receipt.

The mortgage loan portfolio is collectively evaluated for impairment as the lcans are smaller-balance and are homogeneous in nature. The
Company maintains an allowance for credit losses inherent in the portfolio at the balance sheet date. The allowance is based upon the
assessment by management of various factors affecting its mortgage loan portfolio, including current economic conditions, the makeup of the
portfolio based on credit grade, loan-to-value, delinquency status, historical credit losses, Company purchased mortgage insurance and other
factors deemed to warrant consideration.

Mortgage Securities Mortgage securities represent beneficial interests the Company retains in securitization and resecuritization transactions
and include interest-only mortgage securities, prepayment penalty bonds, over-collateralization bonds and other subordinated securities.
Interest-only mortgage securities represent the contractual right to receive excess interest cash flows from a pool of securitized mortgage
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loans. Interest payments received by the independent trust are first applied to the principal and interest bonds (held by outside investors),
servicing fees and administrative fees. The excess, if any, is remitted to the Company related to its ownership of the interest-only mortgage
security. Prepayment penalty bonds give the holder the contractual right to receive prepayment penalties collected by the independent trust
on the underlying mortgage loans. Overcollateralization bonds represent the contractual right to excess principal payments resulting from over
collateralization of the obligations of the trust. Subordinated securities retained in resecuritizations represent the contractual right to receive
the remaining cash flows from the trust after the obligations to the outside bond holders have been satisfied. When those obligations have
been satisfied, the trust returns the transferred securities to the subordinated interest holders.

Mortgage securities are classified as available for sale and, accordingly, are reported at their estimated fair value with unrealized gains and
losses reported in accumulated other comprehensive income.

As previously described, mortgage securities represent the retained interests in certain components of the cash flows of the underlying
mortgage loans or mortgage 'securities transferred to securitization trusts. As payments are received the payments are applied to the cost
basis of the mortgage related security. Each period, the accretable yield for each mortgage security is evaluated and, to the extent there
has been a change in the estimated cash flows, it is adjusted and applied prospectively. The estimated cash flows change as management's
assumptions for credit losses, borrower prepayments and interest rates are updated. The assumptions are established using sophisticated
models the Company has developed. The accretable yield is recorded as interest income with a corresponding increase to the cost basis of
the mortgage security.

At each reporting period subsequent to the initial valuation of the retained securities, the fair value of mortgage securities is estimated based
on the present value of future :expected cash flows to be received. Management's best estimate of key assumptions, including credit losses,
prepayment speeds, the market discount rates and forward vield curves commensurate with the risks involved, are used in estimating future
cash flows. To the extent that the cost basis of mortgage securities exceeds the fair value and the unrealized loss is considered to be

other than temporary, an impairment charge is recognized and the amount recorded in accumulated other comprehensive income or loss is
reclassified to earnings as a realized loss.

Servicing Related Advances The Company advances funds on behalf of borrowers for taxes, insurance and other customer service
functions. These advances are routinely assessed for collectibility and any uncollectible advances are appropriately charged to earnings.

Mortgage Servicing Rights Originated mortgage servicing rights are recorded at allocated cost based upon the relative fair values of the
transferred loans and the servicing rights. Mortgage servicing rights are amortized in proportion to the projected net servicing revenue over the
expected life of the related mortgage loans. Periodically, the Company evaluates the carrying value of originated mortgage servicing rights
based on their estimated fair value. If the estimated fair value, using a discounted cash flow methodology, is less than the carrying amount

of the mortgage servicing rights, the mortgage servicing rights are written down to the amount of the estimated fair value. For purposes

of evaluating and measuring impairment of mortgage servicing rights the Company stratifies the mortgage servicing rights based on their
predominant risk characteristics. The significant risk characteristic considered by the Company is period of origination. The mortgage loans
underlying the mortgage servicing rights are pools of homogenous, non-conforming residential loans.

Assets Acquired Through Foreclosure Real estate owned, which consists of residential real estate acquired in satisfaction of loans, is
xcarried at the lower of cost or estimated fair value less estimated selling costs. Adjustments to the loan carrying value required at time of
foreclosure are charged against the allowance for credit losses. Costs related to the development of real estate are capitalized and those
related to holding the property are expensed. Losses or gains from the ultimate disposition of real estate owned are charged or credited to
operating income.

Property and Equipment Leasehold improvements, furniture and fixtures and office and computer equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation. Net property and equipment is included in orther assets. Depreciation is computed using the straight-ine method
over the estimated useful lives of the related assets. The estimated useful lives of the assets are as follows:

LA el I D O B S, . o e e e e 5 years
FUrnItUre and fitUrES . . o e e e e 5 years
Office and computer @QUIDMENt . . . oL L e e F 3 years




Maintenance and repairs are charged to expense. Major renewals and improvements are capitalized. Gains and losses on dispositions are
credited or charged to earnings as incurred.

Premiums for Mortgage Loan Insurance The Company uses lender paid mortgage insurance to mitigate the risk of ioss on ioans that are
originated. For those loans held-in-portfolio the premiums for mortgage insurance are expensed by the Company as the cost of the premiums
are incurred. For those loans sold in securitization transactions accounted for as a sale, the independent trust assumes-the obligation to pay
the premiums and obtains the right to receive insurance proceeds.

Transfers of Assets A transfer of mortgage loans or mortgage securities in which the Company surrenders control over the financial assets
is accounted for as a sale. When the Company retains control over transferred mortgage loans or mortgage securities, the transaction is
accounted for as a secured borrowing. When the Company sells mortgage loans or mortgage securities in securitization and resecuritization
transactions, it may retain one or more bond classes and servicing rights in the securitization. Gains and losses on the assets transferred are
recognized based on the carrying amount of the financial assets involved in the transfer, allocated between the assets transferred and the
retained interests based on their relative fair value at the date of transfer.

Management believes the best estimate of the initial value of the securities it retains in a whole loan securitization is derived from the market
value of the pooled loans. The initial value of the loans is estimated based on the expected open market sales price of a similar pool. The
Company regularly accepts bids on its whole loans in order to test the market price. In open market transactions, the purchaser has the right
to reject loans at its discretion. In a loan securitization, loans cannot generally be rejected. As a result, management adjusts the market price
for loans to compensate for the estimated value of rejected loans. The market price of the securities retained is derived by deducting the
percent of net proceeds received in the securitization {i.e. the economic value of the loans transferred) from the estimated adjusted market
price for the entire poo! of the loans.

An implied yield (discount rate) is calculated based on the initial value derived above and using projected cash flows generated using
assumptions for prepayments, expected credit losses and interest rates. We ensure the resulting implied yield is commensurate with current
market conditions. Additionally, this vield serves as the initial accretable yield used to recognize income on the securities.

The Company estimates fair value for the securities it retains in a resecuritization transaction based on the present value of future expected
cash flows estimated using management's best estimate of the key assumptions, including credit losses, prepayment speeds, forward yield
curves, and discount rates commensurate with the risks involved.

The following is a description of the methods used by the Company to transfer assets, including the related accounting treatment under
gach method:

o Whole Loan Sales Whole loan sales represent loans sold with servicing released. Gains and losses on whole loan sales are recognized in
the period the sale occurs and the Company has determined that the criteria for sales treatment has been achieved as it has surrendered
control over the assets transferred. The Company generally has an obligation to repurchase whole joans sold in circumstances in which the
borrower fails to make the first payment. Additionally, the Company is also required to repay all or a portion of the premium it receives on
the sale of whole loans in the event that the loan prepays in its entirety in the first year. The Company records the fair value of recourse
obligations upon the sale of the mortgage loans. See Note 15.

Loans and Securities Sold Under Agreements to Repurchase (Repurchase Agreements) Repurchase agreements represent legal sales of
loans or mortgage securities and an agreement to repurchase the loans or mortgage securities at a later date. Repurchase agreements are
accounted for as secured borrowings because the Company has not surrendered control of the transferred assets as it is both entitled and
obligated to repurchase the transferred assets prior to their maturity.

Securitization Transactions The Company regularly securitizes mortgage loans by transferring mortgage loans to independent trusts which
issue securities to investors. The securities are collateralized by the mortgage loans transferred into the independent trusts. The Company
generally retains interests in some of the securities issued by the trust. Certain of the securitization agreements require the Company to
repurchase loans that are found to have legal deficiencies, subsequent to the date of transfer. The Company is also required to buy back
any loan for which the borrower converts from an adjustable rate to a fixed rate. The fair values of these recourse obligations are recorded
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upon the transfers of the mortgage loans and on an ongoing basis. The Company also has the right, but not the obligation, to acquire loans
when they are 90 to 119 days delinquent and at the time a property is liquidated. As discussed above, the accounting treatment for transfers
of assets upon securitization depends on whether or not the Company has retained control over the transferred assets. The Company records
an asset and a liability on the balance sheet for the aggregate fair value of loans that it has a right to call as of the balance sheet date.

* Resecrvitization Transactions The Company also engages in resecuritization transactions, A resecuritization is the transfer or sale of
mortgage securities that the Company has retained in previous securitization transactions to an independent trust. Similar to a securitization,
the trust issues securities that are collateralized by the mortgage securities transferred to the trust. Resecuritization transactions are
accounted for as either a sale or a secured borrowing based on whether or not the Company has retained or surrendered control over the
transferred assets. In the resecuritization transaction, the Company may retain an interest in a security that represents the right to receive
the cash flows on the underlying mortgage security collateral after the senior bonds, issued to third parties, have been repaid in full,

Fee Income The Company receives fee income from several sources. The following describes significant fee income sources and the related
accounting treatment:

* Broker Fees Broker fees are paid by other lenders for placing loans with third party investors {lenders) and are based on negotiated rates
with each fender to whom the Company brokers loans. Revenue is recognized upon loan origination and delivery.

* Loan Origination Fees Loan origination fees represent fees paid to the Company by borrowers and are associated with the origination of
mortgage loans. Loan origination fees are determined based on the type and amount of loans originated. Loan origination fees and direct
origination costs on mortgage loans held-in-portfolio are deferred and recognized over the life of the loan using the level yield method. Loan
origination fees and direct origination costs on mortgage loans held-for-sale are deferred and considered as part of the carrying value of the
loan when sold.

o Service Fee Income Service fees are paid to the Company by either the investor on mortgage loans serviced or the borrower. Fees paid by
investors on loans serviced are determined as a percentage of the principal collected for the loans serviced and are recognized in the period
in which payments on the loans are received. Fees paid by borrowers on loans serviced are considered ancillary fees related to loan servicing
and include late fees, processing fees and, for loans held-in-portfolio, prepayment penalties. Revenue is recognized on fees received from
borrowers when an event occurs that generates the fee and they are considered to be collectible.

o Affiliated Branch Management Fees These fees are charged to affiliated mortgage brokers to manage their administrative operations,
which include providing accounting, payroll, human resources, [oan investor management and license management. The amount of the fees
is agreed upon when entering a contractual agreement with affiliated mortgage brokers and is recognized as services are rendered.

Stock-Based Compensation Prior to 2003, the Company accounted for its stock-based compensation plan using the recognition and
measurement principles of Accounting Principles Board (APB) Opinion No. 25, Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees and related interpretations.
The Company accounted far stock options based on the specific terms of the options granted. Options with variable terms, including those
options for which the strike price has been adjusted and options issued by the Company with attached dividend equivalent rights, resulted in
adjustments to compensation expense to the extent the market price of the comman stock changed. No expense was recognized for aptions
with fixed terms.

During the fourth quarter of 2003, the Company adopted the fair value recognition provisions of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards
(SFAS) No. 123, Acconnting for Stock-Based Compensation. The Company selected the modified prospective method of adoption described in
SFAS No. 148, Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation-Transition and Disclosure. Under this method, the change is retroactive to January
1, 2003 and compensation cost recognized in 2003 is the same as that which would have been recognized had the fair value method of
SFAS No. 123 been applied: from its original effective date. In accordance with the modified prospective method of adoption, results for prior
years have not been restated. SFAS No. 123 states that the adoption of the fair value based method is a change to a preferable method of
accounting. Management believes that use of the fair value based method to record stock-based compensation expense is consistent with the
accounting for all other forms of compensation.



The following tabie illustrates the effect on net income and earnings per share as if the fair value method had been applied to all outstanding

and unvested awards in each period (in thousands, except per share amounts):
For the Year Ended December 31,

2003 2002 2001

Net income, as reported $111,996 $48,761 $32,308
Add: Stock-based employee compensation expense inciuded in

reported net income, net of related tax effects 1,310 2,473 704
Deduct: Total stock-based employee compensation expense determined

under fair value based method for all awards, net of related tax effects (1,310 600 (318)
Pro forma net income ‘ $111,996 $50,634 $32,694
Earnings per share:

Basic - as reported S 5.04 S 235 S 161

Basic - pro forma S 5.04 § 244 S 1.63

Diluted - as reported S 491 § 225 $ 151

Diluted — pro forma S 491 S 234 S 153

The following table summarizes the weighted average fair value of the granted options, determined using the Black-Scholes option pricing
model and the assumptions used in their determination.

2003 2002 2001
Weighted average:
Fair value, at date of grant §22.48 $10.28 $5.88
Expected life in years 7 7 7
Annual risk-free interest rate 3.3% 4.1% 5.0%
Volatility 2.0 2.1 2.3
Dividend vield 0.0% 2.2% 1.8%

Income Taxes The Company is taxed as a Real Estate Investment Trust (REIT) under Section 856(c) of the Code. As a REIT, the Company
generally is not subject to federal income tax. To maintain its qualification as a REIT, the Company must distribute at least 90% of its REIT
taxable income to its stockholders and meet certain other tests relating to assets and income. If the Company fails to qualify as a REIT in any
taxable year, the Company will be subject to federal income tax on its taxable income at regular corporate rates. The Company may also be
subject to certain state and local taxes. Under certain circumstances, even though the Company qualifies as a REIT, federal income and excise
taxes may be due on its undistributed taxable income. Because the Company has paid or will pay dividends in amounts approximating its taxable
income, no provision for income taxes has been provided in the accompanying financial statements refated to the REIT. However, NFi Holding
Corporation, a wholly-owned subsidiary, has not elected REIT-status and files a consolidated federal income tax return with its subsidiaries.

The Company has elected to treat NF{ Holding Corporation and its subsidiaries as taxable REIT subsidiaries (each a “TRS"). In general, a TRS
of the Company may hold assets that the Company cannot hold directly and generally may engage in any real estate or non-real estate related
business. A TRS is subject to corporate federal income tax and will be taxed as a regular C corporation. However, special ruies do apply to
certain activities between a REIT and a TRS. For example, a TRS will be subject to earnings stripping limitations on the deductibility of interest
paid to its REIT. In addition, a REIT will be subject to @ 100% excise tax on certain excess amounts to ensure that (i} tenants who pay a TRS
for services are charged an arm'sJength amount by the TRS, (ii) fees paid to a REIT by its TRS are reflected at fair market value and (iii) interest
paid by a TRS to its REIT is commercially reasonable. Securities of a TRS will constitute non-real estate assets for purposes of determining
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whether at least 75% of a REIT’s assets consist of real estate. Under current law, no more than 20% of a REIT’s total assets can consist of
securities of one or more taxable REIT subsidiaries. As of December 31, 2003, the amount of the Company's assets attributable to its taxable
REIT subsidiaries was fess than 20%.

With respect to the Company's taxable REIT subsidiaries, the Company records deferred tax assets and liabilities for the future tax consequences
attributable to differences between the financial statement carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their respective income tax
bases. The Company believes the deferred tax asset recorded is recoverable and, therefore, no valuation allowance has been recorded.

The deferred tax asset is included in other assets on the consolidated balance sheet.

Earnings Per Share [EPS) Basic earnings per share excludes dilution and is computed by dividing net income available to common
stockholders by the weighted-average number of common shares outstanding for the period. Diluted earnings per share reflects the potential
dilution that could occur if securities or other contracts to issue common stock were exercised or converted into common stock or resulted in
the issuance of common stock that then shared in the earnings of the entity. Diluted EPS is calculated assuming all options and warrants on
the Company’s common stock have been exercised and the convertible preferred stock is converted, unless the exercise would be antidilutive.

Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities Derivative instruments are recorded at their fair value with hedge ineffectiveness recognized
in earnings. The Company adopted SFAS No. 133, Acconnting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities (as amended), on January
1, 2001 and recorded a charge to earnings of $1.7 million and an increase in accumulated other comprehensive income of $34,000. The
transition adjustments resulted from adjusting the carrying value of certain interest rate cap agreements to their fair value.

The Company uses derivative instruments with the objective of hedging interest rate risk. Interest rates on liabilities of the Company adjust
frequently, while interest rates on the Company’s assets adjust annually, or not at all. The fair value of the Company's derivative instruments
along with any margin accounts associated with the contracts are included in other assets. Any changes in fair value of derivative instruments
related to hedge effectiveness are reported in accumulated other comprehensive income. Changes in fair value of derivative instruments
related to hedge ineffectiveness and non-hedge activity are recorded as adjustments to earnings. For those derivative instruments that do
not qualify for hedge accounting, changes in the fair value of the instruments are recorded as adjustments to earnings.

Commitments to Originate, Purchase and Sell Mortgage Loans As nonconforming mortgage loans are not readily convertible to cash
and cannot readily be settled net, commitments to originate and purchase such loans do not meet the definition of a derivative under accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America, Accordingly, they are not recorded in the consolidated financial statements.
Commitments to originate and sell conforming mortgage loans meet the definition of a derivative and are recorded at fair value in the
consolidated financial statements.

New Accounting Pronouncements In December 2002, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued SFAS No. 148, Accounting
Jor Stock-Based Compensation-Transition and Disclosure, which amends SFAS No. 123. SFAS No. 148 provides alternative methods of
transition for a voluntary change to the fair value based method of accounting for stock-based compensation. Under the fair value based
method, compensation cost for stock options is measured when options are issued. In addition, SFAS No. 148 amends the disclosure
requirements of SFAS No. 123 to require more prominent and more frequent disclosures in financial statements of the effects of stock-based
compensation. The transition guidance and annual disclosure provisions of SFAS No. 148 were effective for fiscal years ending after
December 15, 2002, with earlier application permitted in certain circumstances. The interim disclosure provisions were effective for financial
reports containing financial statements for interim periods beginning after December 15, 2002, As discussed previously in Note 1, the
Company applied the transition provisions of SFAS No. 148 in the implementation of SFAS No. 123 during 2003.

In May 2003, the FASB issued SFAS No. 149, Amendments of Statement 133 on Devivative Instruments and Hedging Activities. This
statement amends and clarifies financial accounting and reporting for derivative instruments, including certain derivative instruments embedded
in ather contracts and for hedging activities under SFAS No. 133. This statement was effective for contracts entered into or modified after
June 30, 2003 and for hedging relationships designated after June 30, 2003. SFAS No. 133 implementation Issues that are effective for
fiscal quarters beginning prior to June 15, 2003 will continue to be effective based on their respective effective dates, and the paragraphs
relating to forward purchases or sales of “when issued” or other securities that do not yet exist would be applicable to bath existing transactions




as well as new transactions entered into after June 30, 2003. The Company's adoption of SFAS No. 149 did not have a significant impact on
its consolidated financial statements.

in May 2003, the FASB issued SFAS No. 150, Accounting for Certain Financial Instruments with Characteristics of Both Liabilities and
Eguity. This statement establishes standards for how an issuer classifies and measures certain financial instruments that are within its scope
as a liability (or an asset in some circumstances). This Statement was effective for financial instruments entered into or modified after May
31, 2003, and otherwise was effective at the beginning of the first interim period beginning after June 15, 2003, except for mandatorily
redeemable financial instruments of nonpublic entities. It is to be implemented by reporting the cumulative effect of a change in an accounting
principle for financial instruments created before the issuance date of the Company's second quarter consolidated financial statements. The
Company's adoption of SFAS No. 150 did not have a significant impact on its consolidated financial statements.

in November 2002, the FASB issued Financial Interpretation (FIN) No. 45, Guarantors Accounting and Disclosure Requivements for Guarantess,
Including Indivect Guarantees of Indebredness of Others, which expands on the accounting guidance of Statements No. 5, 57 and 107 and
incorporates without change the provisions of FIN No. 34, which is being superseded. FIN No. 45 requires a guarantor to recognize, at

the inception of the guarantee, a liability for the fair value of the obligation undertaken in issuing the guarantee. It also provides additional
guidance on the disclosure of guarantees. The recognition and measurement provisions were effective for guarantees made or modified after
December 31, 2002. The disclosure provisions were effective for fiscal periods ending after December 15, 2002. The Company’s adoption
of FIN No. 45 did not have a significant impact on its consolidated financial statements. Significant guarantees that have been entered into by
the Company are discussed in Note 15.

In January 2003, the FASB issued FIN No. 46, Consolrdation of Vaviable Interest Entities, which was replaced by FIN No. 46 (Revised
December 2003), Consolidation of Variable Intevest Entities (FIN No. 46(R)). FIN No. 46 requires consolidation by business enterprises of
variable interest entities that meet certain requirements. FIN No. 46(R} changes the effective date of FIN No. 46 for certain entities. Public
companies shall apply either FIN No. 46 or FIN No. 46(R) to their interests in special purpose entities (SPEs) as of the first interim or annua!
period ending after December 15, 2003. The decision to apply FIN No. 46 or FIN No. 46(R) may be made on an SPE by SPE basis. The
Company's adoption of FIN No. 46 and FIN No. 46(R} did not have a significant impact on its consolidated financial statements.

Reclassifications Reclassifications to prior year amounts have been made to conform to current year presentation.

Note 2. Mortgage Loans

Mortgage loans, all of which are secured by residential properties\, consisted of the following as of December 31, {in thousands);

2003 2002

Mortgage loans - held-in-portfolio:

Qutstanding principal S 94,162 $149,918
Net unamortized premium 1,874 2,994
Amortized cost 96,036 152,912
Allowance for credit losses (1,319 (3,036)
Mortgage loans - held-in-portfolio $ 94,717 $149,876
Mortgage loans -~ held-for-sale:

Qutstanding principal $687,880 $972,360
Net premium 10,112 11,273
Martgage loans - hefd-for-sale $697,992 $983,633
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Activity in the allowance for credit losses is as follows for the three years ended December 31, (in thousands):

2003 2002 2001
Balance, January 1 53,036 $5,557 $7,690
Credit (recoveries) losses (389) (432) 3,608
Amounts charged off, net of recoveries (1,328) (2,089) {5,741)
Balance, December 31 $1,319 $3,036 $5,557

All mortgage loans serve as collateral for borrowing arrangements discussed in Note 6. The weighted-average interest rate on mortgage
loans as of December 31, 2003 and 2002 was 7.94% and 8.29%, respectively.

Collateral for 22% and 17% of the mortgage loans outstanding as of December 31, 2003 was located in California and Florida, respectively.
The Company has no other significant concentration of credit risk.

Details of loan securitization transactions on the date of the securitization are as follows (in thousands):

Alocated Value of Retained Interests

Net Bond Mortgage Subordinated  Principal Balance Gain
Proceeds Servicing Rights Bond Classes of Loans Sold Recognized
Year ended December 31, 2003:
NMFT Series 2003-4 51,476,818 $ 3,986 $ 47,499 $1,019,922 (A) $ 22,035
NMFT Series 2003-3 1,472,820 5,829 84,268 1,499,374 34,544
NMFT Series 2003-2 1,476,358 5,843 78,686 1,499,998 50,109
NMFT Series 2003-1 1,253,820 5116 82,222 1,300,141 29,614
$5,679,916 $20,774 $292,675 $5,319,435 $136,302
Year ended December 31, 2002:
NMFT Series 2002-3 S 734,584 $ 2,939 $ 39,099 $ 750,003 $ 29,353
NMFT Series 2002-2 300,304 1,173 22,021 310,000 10,458
NMFT Series 2002-1 485,824 1,958 29,665 499,998 8,082
$1,520,712 $ 6,070 $ 90,785 $1,560,001 S 47,894
Year ended December 31, 2001:
NMFT Series 2001-2 $ 785,509 $ 3,817 $ 36,942 $ 800,033 S 12,745
NMFT Series 2001-1 407,372 1,837 22,628 415,067 8,985
51,192,881 $ 5,654 $ 59,570 $1,215,100 $ 21,730

(A) On January 14, 2004, the remaining $479.8 million in loans collateralizing NMFT Sevies 2003-4 were delivered and a gain of $9.0 million was vecognized,

In the securitizations, the Company retains interest-only and other subordinated interests in the underlying cash flows and servicing responsibilities.
The Company receives annual servicing fees approximating 0.50% of the outstanding balance and rights to future cash flows arising after the
investors in the securitization trusts have received the return for which they contracted. The investors and securitization trusts have no recourse
to the Company’s assets for failure of borrowers to pay when due. The value of the Company’s interests is subject to credit, prepayment, and
interest rate risks on the transferred financial assets.

Servicing fees received from the securitization trusts were $21.1 million, $10.0 million and $4.9 million for the years ended December 31,
2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively. No purchases of delinquent or foreclosed loans were made on securitizations in which the Company did
not maintain control over the mortgage loans transferred during the three years ended December 31, 2003.



Fair value of the subordinated bond classes at the date of securitization is measured by estimating the open market sales price of a similar
loan pool. An implied yield (discount rate} is calculated based on the value derived and using projected cash flows generated using key
economic assumptions. Key eccnomic assumptions used to project cash flows at the time of loan securitization during the three years ended
December 31, 2003 were as follows:

Mortgage Loan Collateral for NovaStar Mortgage Funding Trust Series
2003-4 2003-3 2003-2 2003-1 2002-3 2002-2 2002-1 2001-2 2001-1

Constant prepayment rate (B) 30% 22% 25% 28% 30% 27% 32% 28% 28%
Average life (in years) 3.06 3.98 3.54 3.35 3.09 313 2.60 2.61 2.54
Expected total credit losses,

net of mortgage insurance (A} (B) 5.1% 3.6% 2.7% 3.3% 1.0% 1.6% 1.7% 1.2% 1.2%
Discount rate (B) 20% 20% 28% 20% 20% 25% 20% 25% 20%

(A) Represents expected credit losses for the life of the securitization up to the expected date in which the velated asset-backed bonds can be called.

(B) The curvent discount rate and assumptions and those at ivust secuvitization, which were previously disclosesd, have been adjusted to veflect management’s vevised estimates
Jor volatility and risk associated with the underlying morigage foan collateral. These revisions do not impact previonsly recorded amounts.

Note 3. Mortgage Securities - Available-for-Sale

Available-for-sale mortgage securities consisted of the Company's investment in the interest-only, prepayment penalty and other subordinated
securities that the trust issued. The primary bonds were sold to parties independent of the Company. Management estimates their fair value
by discounting the expected future cash flow of the collateral and bonds. The average yield on mortgage securities is the interest income for
the year as a percentage of the average fair market value on mortgage securities. The cost basis, unrealized gains and losses and estimated
fair value and average vield of mortgage securities as of December 31, 2003 and 2002 were as follows (dollars in thousands):

Gross Unrealized Estimated Average
Cost Basis Gains Losses Fair Value Yield
As of December 31, 2003 $294,562 $87,826 $ 101 $382,287 34.3%
As of December 31, 2002 102,665 77,755 1,541 178,879 42.7

Maturities of mortgage securities owned by the Company depend on repayment characteristics and experience of the underlying financial
instruments. The Company expects the securities it owns as of December 31, 2003 to mature in one to five years.

All mortgage securities owned by the Company are pledged for borrowings as discussed in Note 6.

On July 2, 2003, the Company securitized the interest-only, prepayment penalty and subordinated securities of NMFT 2003-2 and issued
NovaStar NIMS Certificate Series 2003-N1 in the amount of $54,000,000. The resecuritization was accounted for as a secured borrowing.
In accordance with SFAS No. 140, Accounting for Transfers and Servicing of Financial Assets and Extinguishments of Liabilities, control
over the transférred assets was not surrendered and thus the transaction was recorded as financing for the mortgage securities.

On November 5, 2002, the Company securitized the interest-only and prepayment penalty securities of NMFT 2001-1 and NMFT 2001-2 and
issued NovaStar CAPS Certificate Series 2002-C1 in the amount of $68,000,000. The resecuritization was accounted for as a secured
borrowing. In accordance with SFAS No. 140, control over the transferred assets was not surrendered and thus the transaction was recorded
as financing for the mortgage securities.

On September 26, 2001, the Company securitized interest-only and prepayment penalty securities and issued NovaStar CAPS Certificates
Series 2001-C1 in the amount of $29,250,000. A gain of $14.9 million was recognized on this transaction. A subordinated security, valued
by the Company at $8.2 million, was retained entitling the Company to receive cash flows of the collateral once the primary bonds are paid.
On October 25, 2002, the primary bonds were paid off and the interest-only and prepayment penalty securities were transferred back to the
Company by the trust.
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As of December 31, 2003, key economic assumptions and the sensitivity of the current fair value of retained interests owned by the Company
to immediate adverse changes in those assumptions are as follows, on average for the portfolio (dollars in thousands):

Carrying amount/fair value of retained InterestS . . . ... . o e e $382,287
AVEIagE B (N YRS . . o o i e e e 3.0
Prepayment speed assumption (CPR). . .. oo e e e e 29
Fair value after @ 100 InCreasE . . . oo oot e e $371,496
Fair value after @ 25% INCIEASE . . . . . . oot e e $358,031
Expected annual credit losses {percent of current collateral balance) . .. ... . 32
Fair value after @ 10% INCIBASE . . . . ..t oottt ettt ettt e e $374,446
Fair value after @ 200 INCrBaSE . . o o o e $364,128
Residual cash flows disCount rate (d). . . ... o e e e 22
Fair value after a 500 Dasis DOINT INCIEaSE . . . . o . oo e e e e $360,240
Fair value after a 1000 basis point increasé .................................................................... $341,303
Market interest rates
Fair value after a 100 basis pOiNt INCrBaSe . . . . .t o i e e e e e $351,292
Fair value after @ 200 basis poIMt NCIBaSE . . .. o e e $313,298

These sensitivities are hypothetical and should be used with caution. As the analysis indicates, changes in fair value based on a 10% variation
in assumptions generally cannot be extrapolated because the relationship of the change in assumption to the change in fair value may not

be linear. Also, in this table the effect of a variation in a particular assumption on the fair value of the retained interest is calculated without
changing any other assumption; in reality, changes in one factor may result in changes in another (for example, increases in market interest
rates may result in lower prepayments and increased credit losses), which might magnify or counteract the sensitivities.

The actual static pool credit loss as of December 31, 2003 was 0.19% and the cumulative projected static pool credit loss for the remaining
life of the securities is 2.55%. Static pool losses are calculated by summing the actual and projected future credit losses and dividing them by
the original balance of each pool of assets.

The table below presents guantitative information about delinquencies, net credit losses, and components of securitized financial assets and
other assets managed together with them (in thousands):

December 31,

Total Principal Amount Principal Amount of Loans Net Credit Losses During
of Loans (A) 30 Days or More Past Due the Year Ended December 31,
2003 2002 2003 2002 2003 2002
Loans securitized $6,428,364 $2,586,493 $201,774 $125,700 $ 7,700 $ 4,558
Loans held-for-sale 688,506 973,224 3,125 37,466 498 484
Loans held-in-portfolio 96,729 155,683 15,313 28,743 4,402(B) 7,857(B}
Total loans managed or securitized $7,213,599 $3,715,400 $220,212 $191,909 $12,600 $12,899

(A) Includes assets acquired through foreclosure,

(B) Excludes morigage insurance proceeds on policies paid by the Company and includes interest accrued in excess of 120 days for which the Company had discontinued intevest accrual,




Note 4., Mortgage Servicing

The Company records mortgage servicing rights arising from the transfer of loans to the securitization trusts. The following schedule
summarizes the carrying value of mortgage servicing rights and the activity during 2003, 2002 and 2001 (in thousands):

2003 2002 2001
Balance, January 1 $ 7,906 $6,445 S -
Amount acquired in purchase of common stock of NFl Holding Corporation — — 2,922
Amount capitalized in connection with transfer of loans to securitization trusts 20,774 6,070 5,654
Amortization (8,995) (4,609) (2,131)
Balance, December 31 $19,685 $7,906 $6,445

The estimated fair value of the servicing assets aggregated $33.4 million and $12.6 million at December 31, 2003 and December 31, 2002,
respectively. The fair value is estimated by discounting estimated future cash flows from the servicing assets using discount rates that
approximate current market rates. The fair vaiue as of December 31, 2003 was determined utilizing a 15% discount rate, credit losses

net of mortgage insurance (as a percent of current principal balance) of 2.8% and an annual prepayment rate of 26%. The fair value as of
December 31, 2002 was determined utilizing a 15% discount rate, credit losses net of mortgage insurance (as a percent of current principal
bafance) of 1.8% and an annual prepayment rate of 40%.

Mortgage servicing rights are amortized in proportion to and over the estimated period of net servicing income. The estimated amortization
expense for 2004, 2005, 2006 and 2007 is $10.9 million, $6.7 million, $1.6 million and $0.5 million, respectively.

The Company holds, as custodian, funds collected from borrowers to ensure timely payment of hazard and primary mortgage insurance and
property taxes related to the properties securing the loans. These funds are not owned by the Company and are held in trust. The Company
heid $20.9 million and $9.1 million in escrow for borrowers at December 31, 2003 and 2002, respectively.

Note 5. Property and Equipment, Net

Property and equipment consisted of the following at December 31, {in thousands):

2003 2002

Qffice and computer equipment §13,617 $7,691
Furniture and fixtures 7,209 2,770
Leasehold inprovements 3,048 838
23,874 11,299

Less accumulated depreciation 9,337 5,889
Property and equipment, net $14,537 $5,410

Depreciation expense for the years ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001 was $3.9 million, $1.2 million and $0.9 million, respectively.
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Note 6. Borrowings

Short-term Borrowings The following tables summarize the Company’s repurchase agreements and warehouse agreements as of December

31, 2003 and 2002 {(delars in thousands):
Weighted Maximum

Average Average Amount
Maximum Daily Balance Interest Outstanding
Borrowing Days to During Rate During  During
Capacity Rate Reset Batance the Year the Year the Year
December 31, 2003
Shert-term borrowings (indexed to one-month LIBOR):
Repurchase agreement expiring March 31, 2004 $ 600,000 2.91% 22 $ 100,161
Repurchase agreement expiring June 5, 2004 600,000 1.87 16 431,515
Repurchase agreement expiring Aprit 30, 2004 300,000 1.64 26 28,178
Repurchase agreement expiring September 8, 2004 500,000 — — —
Repurchase agreement expiring May 22, 2004 300,000 2.25 15 214,899
Repurchase agreement expiring October 23, 2004 575,000 217 15 97,782
Total shortterm borrowings $2,875,000 S 872,636 $915,689 257%. $1,574,156
December 31, 2002
Short-term borrowings (indexed to one-month LIBOR):
Repurchase agreement expiring March 31, 2003 S 50,000 1.88% 29 S 40,650
Repurchase agreement expiring September 18, 2003 50,000 1.88 24 46,500
Repurchase agreement expiring October 28, 2003 50,000 1.88 27 10,914
Repurchase agreement expiring March 31, 2003 200,000 2.38 13 84,320
Repurchase agreement expiring September 18, 2003 150,000 2.38 1 107,705
Repurchase agreement expiring October 28, 2003 300,000 242 10 264,658
Repurchase agreement expiring December 6, 2003 200,000 251 Daily 117,312
Warehouse agreement expiring March 3, 2003
(indexed to Federal funds rate) 125,000 2.74 Daily 123,317
Warehouse agreement expiring September 29, 2003 250,000 2.98 Daily 230,160
Total shortterm borrowings $1,375,000 $1,025,536 $410,951 3.04%  $1,025,536

The Company's mortgage loans and securities are pledged as collateral on borrowings. All short-term financing arrangements require the
Company to maintain minimum tangible net worth, meet a minimum equity ratio test and comply with other customary debt covenants.
Management believes the Company is in compliance with all debt covenants.

Repurchase agreements generally contain margin calls under which a portion of the borrowings must be repaid if the fair value of the mortgage
securities or mortgage loans collateralizing the repurchase agreements falls under a predefined ratio to the borrowings outstanding.

Asset-backed Bonds (ABB) The Company issued ABB secured by its mortgage loans as a means for long-term financing. For financial
reporting and tax purposes, the mortgage loans held-in-portfolio as collateral are recorded as assets of the Company and the ABB are recorded
as debt. Interest and principal on each ABB is payable only from principal and interest on the underlying mortgage loans collateralizing the
ABB. Interest rates reset monthly and are indexed to one-month LIBOR. The estimated weighted-average months to maturity is based on
estimates and assumptions made by management. The actual maturity may differ from expectations. However, the Company retains the
option to repay the ABB, and reacquire the mortgage loans, when the remaining unpaid principal balance of the underlying mortgage loans
falls below 35% of their original amounts for issue 1997-1 and 25% on 1997-2, 1998-1 and 1998-2.



On July 2, 2003, the Company issued ABB in the amount of $54 million secured by the interest-only, prepayment penalty and subordinated
mortgage securities of NMFT 2003-2 as a means for long-term financing. The mortgage securities are recorded as assets of the Company
and the ABB are recorded as debt. The performance of the mortgage loan collateral underlying these securities, as presented in Note 2
directly affects the performance of the 2003-N1 bond. The interest rate is fixed at 7.385% and the estimated weighted average months to
maturity is based on estimates and assumptions made by management. The actual maturity may differ from expectations.

On November 5, 2002, the Company issued ABB in the amount of $68 million secured by the AAAIQ and prepayment penalty mortgage
securities of NMFT 2001-1 and NMFT 2001-2 as a means for long-term financing. The mortgage securities are recorded as assets of the
Company and the ABB are recorded as debt. The performance of the mortgage loan collateral underlying these securities, as presented in
Note 2 directly affects the performance of the 2002-C1 bond. The interest rate is fixed at 7.15% and the estimated weighted average months
to maturity is based on estimates and assumptions made by management. The actual maturity may differ from expectations.

Following is a summary of outstanding ABB and related [oans (dolfars in thousands):

Asset-backed Bonds Mortgage Loans
Remaining Interest Remaining Weighted Estimated Weighted
Principal Rate Principal {A) Average Coupon Average Months to Call
As of December 31, 2003:
NovaStar Home Equity Series:
Collateralizing Mortgage Loans:
issue 1997-1 $ 10,249 1.63% $11,721 10.17% —
Issue 1897-2 13,177 1.63 14,629 10.51 —
Issue 1998-1 24,337 1.54 27,118 9.94 —
Issue 1998-2 41,621 1.55 43,261 9.87 -
S 89,384
Collateralizing Mortgage Securities:
Issue 2002-C1 S 7,070 7.15% (B) (B) B) B
Issue 2003-N1 38,100 7.39(C) € e ©)
Unamortized debt issuance costs, net {1,574)
S 43,596
As of December 31, 2002:
NovaStar Home Equity Series:
Collateralizing Mortgage Loans:
Issue 1997-1 S 17,147 1.88% $19,076 10.27% —
Issue 1997-2 20,714 1.88 22,812 1051 —
fssue 19981 39,692 1.82 44,363 10.02 —
issue 1998-2 65,906 1.63 69,432 9.85 —
$143,459
Collateralizing Mortgage Securities: .
Issue 2002-C1 $ 57,219 7.15% (B) (B [t=h (B)
Unamortized debt issuance costs, net (986)
$ 56,233

(A) Includes asets acquired through foreclosure.
(B) Collateral for the 2002-C1 asser backed bond i5 the AAA-I0 and prepayment penalty movigage secuvities of NMFT 2001-1 and NMFT 2001-2.
(C) Collateral for the 2003-N1 asser backed bond is the interest-only, prepayment penalty and subordinated mortgage securities of NMFT 2003-2.
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The following table summarizes the expected repayment requirements relating to the securitization bond financing at December 31, 2003.
Amounts listed as bond payments are based on anticipated receipts of principal and interest on underlying mortgage loan collateral using historicat
prepayment speeds {in thousands):

Asset-backed Bonds

2004 e e $82,346
2005 e e 18,584
2006 . 10,325
2007 e 6,558
2008 e e e 6,187
TR . o e e e 8,980

Note 7. Stockholders’ Equity

The Board of Directors declared a two-for-one split of its common stock, providing shareholders of record as of November 17, 2003, with one
additional share of common stock for each share owned. The additional shares resulting from the split were issued on December 1, 2003
increasing the number of common shares outstanding to 24.1 million. Prior year share amounts and earnings per share disclosures have

. been restated to reflect the stock split.

On May 21, 2003, the Company completed a public offering of 1,207,500 shares of its common stock at $22.13 per share. The Company
raised $25.2 million in net proceeds from this offering. The Company completed another public offering of 1,403,000 shares of its common
stock at $38.50 per share on November 7, 2003, resufting in $51.7 million in net proceeds.

On May 2, 2003, the Company established a direct stock purchase and dividend reinvestment plan. The Plan allows for the purchase of stock
directly from the Company and/or the automatic reinvestment of all or a percentage of the dividends shareholders receive. The Plan allows
for a discount from market of up to 3%. Under the Plan, the Company sold 578,120 shares of its common stock during 2003 at a weighted
average discount of 1.9%. Net proceeds of $17.0 million were raised under these sales of common stock.

Terms of the Class B, convertible preferred stock issued in 1999 allowed the Company to redeem the shares for $7.00 per share beginning
April 1, 2002. In February 2002, the Company notified the preferred shareholders of its intent to redeem all of the outstanding preferred
shares at the earliest possible time. On February 21, 2002, the preferred shareholders exercised their options to convert to common shares.

As of December 31, 2001, the Company had 1,162,731 warrants outstanding for the purchase of Company common stock. On January 30,
2002, warrant holders surrendered 350,000 warrants with an exercise price of $6.94 in a “cashless" exchange for 421,406 shares of the
Company's common stock valued at $8.72 per share. On April 5, 2002, the Company acquired the remaining 812,731 warrants with an
exercise price of $4.56 from warrant holders for $9.5 million.

The Company's Board of Directors has approved the purchase of up to $9 million of the Company’s common stock. No shares were pur-
chased in 2002 or 2003. During the year ended December 31, 2001, 230,294 shares were purchased with an aggregate purchase price of
$655,000. The purchased shares have been returned to the Company's authorized but unissued shares of common stock. All common stock
purchases are charged against additional paid-in capital.



The following is a roliforward of accumulated other comprehensive income for the three years ended December 31, 2003 (in thousands):

Available- Derivative Instruments

for-Sale Used in Cash
Securities Flow Hedges Total
Balance, January 1, 2001 $10,168 s — $10,168
Change in unrealized gain {l0ss) 21,768 {9,882} 11,886
Implementation of SFAS No. 133 — 34 34
Net settlements reclassified to earnings — 2,087 2,087
Realized gain reclassified to earnings (14,946) — (14,946)
Other amortization — (52} {52)
Other comprehensive income (loss) 6,822 {7,813) (991)
Balance, December 31, 2001 16,990 (7,813) 9,177
Change in unrealized gain {loss) 55,649 {12,184) 43,465
Net settlements reclassified to earnings — 10,396 10,396
Other amortization — (103) (103)
Other comprehensive income {loss) 55,649 {1,891) 53,758
Balance, December 31, 2002 72,639 (9,704) 62,935
Change in unrealized gain {loss) 15,086 2,197) 12,889
Net settlements reclassified to earnings — 9,462 9,462
QOther amortization — (103) (103)
Cther comprehensive income 15,086 7,162 22,248
Balance, December 31, 2003 $87,725 $(2,542) $85,183

Prior to 2001, the Company and its founders entered into a series of transactions which resulted in nonrecourse forgivable promissory notes
{the Notes) payable to the Company aggregating $6.4 million and the founders owning 723,108 shares of common stock of the Company.
On January 1, 2001, the Company and its founders entered into another series of transactions, which resulted in a significant reduction in
the balance of the Notes. The founders returned 578,664 shares of the common stock and the Company cancelled the related nonrecourse
debt. The Company then repurchased the remaining 144,444 shares of common stock. The Company also purchased all of the voting
common stock of NFI Holding Corporation from the founders. As a result of this purchase, NFI Holding Corporation became a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company on January 1, 2001.

The founders used the proceeds received from the sale of NFI Holding Corporation and Company common stock to repay a portion of their
obligations described above, The remaining obligations, aggregating $1,393,000, were rewritten into new non-recourse, non interest-hearing
promissory notes. Those notes will be forgiven and charged to expense in equal installments over 10 years as long as the Company employs
the founders on December 31st of each year. The notes will be forgiven in full in the event of a change in control. During the years ended
December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001, the Company recognized $139,000 in compensation expense related to these notes. The founders
have each pledged 144,444 shares of common stock as collateral for these loans.
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Note 8. Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities

The Company’s objective and strategy for using derivative instruments is to mitigate the risk of increased costs on its variable rate liabilities
during a period of rising rates. The Company’s primary goals for managing interest rate risk are to maintain the net interest margin between
its assets and liabilities 'and diminish the effect of changes in general interest rate levels on the market value of the Company.

The derivative instruments used by the Company to manage this risk are interest rate caps and interest rate swaps. Interest rate caps are
contracts in which the Company pays either an upfront premium or quarterly premium to a counterparty. In return, the Company receives
payments from the counterparty when interest rates rise above a certain rate specified in the contract. During 2003, 2002 and 2001,
premiums paid related to interest rate cap agreements aggregated $7.4 million, $1.2 million and $3.7 million, respectively. When premiums
are financed by the Company, a liability is recorded for the premium obligation. Premiums due to counterparties as of December 31, 2003
and 2002 were $3.5 million and $171,000, respectively, and bear a weighted average interest rate of 1.9% and 7.1%, respectively. The
future contractual maturities of premiums due to counterparties as of December 31, 2003 are $1.6 million, $1.4 million and $0.5 million due
in 2004, 2005 and 2006, respectively. The interest rate swap agreements to which the Company is party stipulate that the Company pay a
fixed rate of interest to the counterparty and the counterparty pays the company a variable rate of interest based on the notional amount of
the contract. The liabilities the Company hedges are asset-backed bonds and borrowings under its warehouse, mortgage loan and mortgage
security repurchase agreements as discussed in Note 6.

All of the Company's derivative instruments that meet the hedge accounting criteria of SFAS No. 133 are considered cash flow hedges.

The Company also has derivative instruments that do not meet the requirements for hedge accounting. However, these instruments also
contribute to the Company’s overall risk management strategy by serving to reduce interest rate risk on average short-term borrowings used
to fund loans held-for-sale. The following tables present derivative instruments as of December 31, 2003 and 2002 (dollars in thousands):

Notignal Maximum Days
Amount Fair Value to Maturity
As of December 31, 2003:
Cash flow hedge derivative instruments $ 250,000 $ {3,224) 450
Non-hedge derivative instruments 2,085,144 1,255 1,090
Total derivative instruments $2,335,144 $ (1,969
As of December 31, 2002:
Cash flow hedge derivative instruments $ 435,000 $(11,267) 815
Non-hedge derivative instruments 1,648,486 6,977) 1,090
Total derivative instruments $2,083,486 $(18,244)

During the three years ended December 31, 2003, the Company recognized $9.4 million, $10.3 million and $2.0 million, respectively, in net
expense on derivative instruments qualifying as cash flow hedges, which is recorded as a component of interest expense.

The net amount included in other comprehensive income expected to be reclassified into earnings within the next twelve months is a charge to
earnings of approximately $3.1 million.

The derivative financial instruments we use also subject us to “margin call” risk. The Company’s deposits with derivative counterparties were
$20.9 million and $30.3 million as of December 31, 2003 and 2002, respectively.

The Company's derivative instruments involve, to varying degrees, elements of credit and market risk in addition to the amount recognized in
the consolidated financial statements.



Credit Risk The Company's exposure to credit risk on derivative instruments is limited to the cost of replacing contracts should the counterparty
fail. The Company seeks to minimize credit risk through the use of credit approval and review processes, the selection of only the most
creditworthy counterparties, continuing review and monitoring of all counterparties, exposure reduction techniques and thorough legal scrutiny
of agreements. Before engaging in negotiated derivative transactions with any counterparty, the Company has in place fully executed written
agreements. Agreements with counterparties also call for full two-way netting of payments. Under these agreements, on each payment
exchange date all gains and losses of counterparties are netted into a single amount, limiting exposure to the counterparty to any net receivable
amount due.

Market Risk The potential for financial loss due to adverse changes in market interest rates is a function of the sensitivity of each position
to changes in interest rates, the degree to which each position can affect future earnings under adverse market conditions, the source and
nature of funding for the position, and the net effect due to offsetting positions. The derivative instruments utilized leave the Company in a
market position that is designed to be a better position than if the derivative instrument had not been used in interest rate risk management.

Other Risk Considerations The Company is cognizant of the risks involved with derivative instruments and has policies and procedures in
place to mitigate risk associated with the use of derivative instruments in ways appropriate to its business activities, considering its risk profile
as a limited end-user.

Note 9. Income Taxes

The components of income tax expense (benefit) allocated to earnings are as follows (in thousands):
For the Year Ended December 31,

2003 2002
Current $28,708 $2,621
Deferred (5,848) (4,652}
Total income tax expense (benefit) $22,860 $(2,031)

The difference between expected income tax benefit computed at the federal statutory rate of 35% and actual income tax benefit recorded at
the taxable REIT subsidiary is as follows (in thousands}:

For the Year Ended December 31,

2003 2002
Income tax at statutory rate (taxable REIT subsidiary} $18,102 $(3,755)
State income taxes 1,549 (442}
Nondeductible expenses 228 117
Taxable gain on security sale to REIT 2,761 805
Other 220 1,244
Total income tax expense (benefit) $22,860 $(2,031)
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The tax effects of temparary differences that give rise to the significant portions of the deferred tax assets and liabilities are as follows (in

thousands):
December 31,

2003 2002
Deferred tax assets:
Mark-to-market adjustment on held-for-sale loans S 7,724 S —
Unrealized loss on derivative instruments — 3,108
Excess inclusion income 10,242 2,383
Net operating loss carryforwards — 1,368
Unrealized loss on derivatives used in cash flow hedges — 1,396
Deferred compensation plan contributions 1,893 —
Fixed assets — 138
Qther 1,956 853
Deferred tax asset 21,815 9,246
Deferred tax liabilities:
Unrealized gain on available for sale securities — 3,575
Mortgage servicing rights 7,677 3,004
Fixed assets 2,319 —
Other 1,364 201
Deferred tax fiability 11,360 6,780
Net deferred tax asset $10,455 $2,466

Note 10. Employee Benefit Plans

The NovaStar Financial, Inc. 401(k) Plan {the Plan) is a defined contribution plan which allows eligible employees to save for retirement through
pretax contributions. Under the Plan, employees of the Company may contribute up to the statutory limit. The Company may elect to match
a certain percentage of participants’ contributions. The Company may also elect to make a discretionary contribution which is allocated to
participants based on each participant's compensation. Contributions to the Plan by the Company for the years ended December 31, 2003,
2002 and 2001 were $2.0 million, $806,000 and $472,000, respectively.

The Company's Deferred Compensation Pian (the Plan) is a nonqualified deferred compensation plan that benefits certain designated key
members of management and highly compensated employees and allows them to defer payment of a portion of their compensation to future
years. Under the Plan, an employee may defer up to 50% of his or her base salary, bonus and/or commissions on a pretax basis. The
Company may make both voluntary and/or matching contributions to the Plan on behalf of Plan participants. All Plan assets are corporate
assets rather than individual property and are therefare subject to creditors' claims against the Company. The Company made contributions
to the Plan for the years ended December 31, 2003 and 2002 of $643,000 and $482,000, respectively.

Note 11. Stock Option Plan

The Company's 1996 Stock Option Plan (the Plan) provides for the grant of qualified incentive stock options {ISOs), non-qualified stock options
(NQSOs), deferred stack, restricted stock, perfarmance shares, stock appreciation and limited stock awards and dividend equivalent tights
(DERs). Since inception of the Plan, the Company has granted only 1SOs, NQSOs and DERs. 1SOs may be granted to the officers and employees
of the Company. NQSOs and awards may be granted to the directors, officers, employees, agents and consultants of the Company or any
subsidiaries. Under the terms of the Plan, the number of shares available for issuance is equal to 10% of the Company’s outstanding common



stock. Individuals who receive awards under the Plan will vest in those awards ratably over a four-year period. Unless previously terminated
by the Board of Directors, the Plan will terminate on September 1, 2006.

Prior to 2003, the Company accounted for stock-based compensation plans under the recognition and measurement provisions of APB No,
25 and related interpretations. Effective January 1, 2003, the Company adopted the fair value recognition provisions of SFAS No. 123. The
Company selected the modified prospective method of adoption described in SFAS No, 148. Compensation cost recognized in 2003 is the
same as that which would have been recognized had the fair value method of SFAS No. 123 been applied from its original effective date.
See Note 1.

In accordance with the provisions of SFAS No. 123 and SFAS No. 148, $1.3 million was recorded for total stock-based compensation expense
in 2003. In accordance with APB No. 25, total stock-based compensation expense was $2.5 million and $0.7 million, respectively, for the
years ended December 31, 2002 and 2001,

All options have been granted at exercise prices greater than or equal to the estimated fair value of the underlying stock at the date of grant.
Qutstanding options vest over four years and expire ten years after the date of grant. The foliowing table summarizes option activity under the
1996 Plan for 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively:

2003 2002 2001
Weighted Weighted Weighted
Shares Average Price Shares Average Price Shares Average Price
QOutstanding at the beginning of year 1,032,670 §7.40 1,078,840 $4.69 1,083,820 $3.82
Granted 15,000 22.66 314,000 12.05 225,000 6.73
Exercised (275,390) 5.98 (355,250) 3.05 {226,500} 2.80
Canceled (25,480} 7.79 4,920 8.25 (3,480) 9.00
Outstanding at the end of year 746,800 $8.22 1,032,670 $7.40 1,078,840 $4.69
Exercisable at the end of year 275,050 $7.67 294,420 $7.63 406,090 $6.19

Certain options granted during 2003, 2002 and 2001 were granted with DERs. In December 2001, the Company's Board of Directors
approved that certain existing and all future stock option grants have DERs attached to them. Under the terms of the DERs, a recipient is
entitled to receive additional shares of stock upon the exercise of options. For employees, the DERs accrue at a rate equal to the number of
options outstanding times sixty percent of the dividends per share amount at each dividend payment date. For directors, the DERs accrue at
a rate equal to the number of options outstanding times the dividends per share amount at each dividend payment date. The accrued DERs
convert to shares based on the stock's fair value on the dividend payment date. Certain of the options exercised in 2003, 2002 and 2001
had DERs attached to them when issued. As a result of these exercises, an additional 23,485, 3,226 and 1,778 shares of common stock
were issued in 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively.

The following table presents information on stock options outstanding as of December 31, 2003.

Outstanding Exercisable
Weighted Average Remaining Weighted Average Weighted Average
Exercise Price Quantity Contractual Life (Years) Exercise Price Quantity Exercise Price
S1.53-57.16 349,250 7.40 $4.27 120,500 $4.55
$7.91 - $10.41 114,500 4.43 8.92 103,250 9.03
$12.22 - 52266 283,050 8.96 12.81 51,300 12,28
746,800 7.53 $8.22 275,050 $7.67
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Note 12. Segment Reporting

The Company reviews, manages and operates its business in three segments. These business segments are: mortgage portfolio management,
mortgage lending and loan servicing and branches. Mortgage portfolio management operating results are driven from the income generated
on the assets we manage lless associated management costs. Mortgage lending and loan servicing operations include the marketing,
underwriting and funding of loan production. Servicing operations represent the income and costs to service on and off-balance sheet loans
{(See Note 2). Branches include the collective income generated by NovaStar Home Mortgage brokers and the associated operating costs.
The corporate-level income and costs to support the NovaStar Home Mortgage, Inc (NHMI) branches as well as the LLC branches is represented
in the branches segment.

The Company’s operations were restructured into this decentralized organization structure beginning January 1, 2001 as the branches became
more significant to the overall performance of the Company. Certain reclassifications have been made to prior year amounts to conform with
current year segment presentation. Following is a summary of income and assets by the Company's primary operating units for the year
ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001 (in thousands):

Mortgage Portfolio  Mortgage Lending

For the Year Ended December 31, 2003: Management and Loan Servicing  Branches Eliminations Total

Interest income $109,542 S 60,878 S — S — S 170,420
Interest expense 17,433 31,055 — (8,124) 40,364
Net interest income before credit recoveries 92,109 29,823 — 8,124 130,056
Credit recoveries 389 — — — 389
Gains (losses) on sales of mortgage assets (1,911) 140,870 — 5,046 144,005
Fee income 65 37,505 40,290 (9,519) 68,341
Losses on derivative instruments (894) (29,943) — — (30,837)
Other income {expense) 15,934 (14,563) 53 (4,114) (2,690)
General and administrative expenses (6,667) (133,196) (34,545) — (174,408)
Income before income tax 99,025 30,496 5,798 (463) 134,856
Income tax expense — 20,580 2,280 — 22,860
Net income $ 99,025 $ 9,916 $ 3,518 S 463 $ 111,996

December 31, 2003:
Total assets $563,930 $834,980 $17,276 $(16,229} $1,399,957

Mortgage Portfolio Mortgage Lending

For the Year Ended December 31, 2002: Management and Loan Servicing  Branches Eliminations Total

Interest income $ 73,407 S 33736 s - s — $ 107,143
Interest expense 15,650 20,715 — (8,637) 27,728
Net interest income before credit recoveries 57,757 13,021 — 8,637 79,415
Credit recoveries A32 — — — 432
Gains (losses) on sales of mortgage assets (791) 52,282 — 1,814 53,305
Fee income 432 18,084 21,495 (4,028) 35,983
Losses on derivative instruments (2,282) (34,559) — — (36,841)
QOther income (expense) 12,466 (6,532) 62 (6,966) (970)
General and administrative expenses (6,991) (59,306) (18,840) 543 (84,594)
Income (loss) before income tax 61,023 {17,010) 2,717 — 46,730
Income tax expense (benefit) — (3,372 1,341 — (2,031)
Net income {loss) $ 61,023 S (13,638) $ 1,376 S — S 48,761

December 31, 2002:
Total assets $387,600 §1,053,477 $11,814 $ (394) $1,452,497




Mortgage Portfolio  Mortgage Lending

For the Year Ended December 31, 2001: Management and Loan Servicing  Branches Eliminations Total
Interest income $ 38,394 S 19,425 S 85 S — S 57,904
Interest expense 18,996 12,301 — (3,931) 27,366
Net interest income before credit losses 19,398 7,124 85 3,831 30,538
Credit losses (3,608) - - — {3,608)
Gains on sales of mortgage assets 14,745 22,431 171 — 37,347
Fee income 790 2,088 19,689 (1,573 20,994
Losses on derivative instruments — (3,953} — — (3,953)
Other income (expense) 4,788 (2,436) (U (3,151) (799)
General and administrative expenses (4,386) (26,573) (16,339) 793 46,505)
Income (loss) before cumulative effect of a

change in accounting principle 31,728 (1,319) 3,605 — 34,014
Cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle 1,384 322 — — 1,706
Net income (loss) $ 30,344 S (1,641) S 3,605 s - $ 32,308

December 31, 2001:
Totat assets $344,676 $152,593 $15,111 S — $512,380

Intersegment revenues and expenses that were eliminated in cansolidation were as follows (in thousands):

2003 2002 2001
Amounts paid (received) to (from) mortgage portfolio from (to) mortgage lending and loan servicing:
Loan servicing fees $ (685) $(1,074) $(1,573)
Administrative fees — (449) (704)
Intercompany interest income 8,124 8,637 3,931
Guaranty, commitment, loan sale and securitization fees 9,244 6,001 3,871
Amounts paid (received) to {from) branches from (to) mortgage lending and loan servicing:
Lender premium 5,509 1,814 —
Subsidized fees 3,325 1,139 —
Administrative fees — (94) (88)
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Note 13. Fair Value of Financial Instrumenis

The following disclosure of the: estimated fair value of financial instruments presents amounts that have been determined using available
market information and appropriate valuation methodologies. However, considerable judgment is required to interpret market data to develop
the estimates of fair value. Accordingly, the estimates presented herein are not necessarily indicative of the amounts that could be realized
in a current market exchange. The use of different market assumptions or estimation methodologies could have a material impact on the
estimated fair value amounts.

The estimated fair values of the Company's financial instruments are as follows as of December 31, (in thousands):

2003 2002
Carrying Value Fair Value Carrying Value Fair Value
Financial assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $118,180 $118,180 S 79,742 § 79,742
Mortgage loans:
Held-for-sale 697,992 716,006 983,633 995,320
Held-in-portfolio 94,717 96,455 149,876 151,954
Mortgage securities — available-for-sale 382,287 382,287 178,879 178,879
Mortgage servicing rights 19,685 33,788 7,906 12,617
Deposits with counterparties 20,900 20,900 30,310 30,310
Financial liabilities:
Borrowings:
Shortterm 872,536 872,536 1,025,536 1,025,536
Asset-backed bonds 132,980 132,980 199,692 199,352
Derivative instruments:
Interest rate cap agreements 6,679 6,679 1,200 1,200
Interest rate swap agreements (8,648) (8,648) (19,444) (19,444)

Cash and cash equivalents — The fair value of cash and cash equivalents approximates its carrying value.

Mortgage loans — The fair value for all loans is estimated by discounting the projected future cash fiows using market discount rates at
which similar loans made to borrowers with similar credit ratings and maturities would be discounted in the market.

Mortgage securities — available-for-sale — The fair value of mortgage securities is estimated by discounting future projected cash flows using
a discount rate commensurate with the risks involved.

Mortgage sevvicing vights — The fair value of mortgage servicing rights is calculated based on a discounted cash flow methodology
incorporating numerous assumptions, including servicing income, servicing costs, market discount rates and prepayment speeds.

Borrowings — The fair value of all borrowings approximates carrying value as the borrowings bear interest at rates that approximate current
market rates for similar borrowings.

Derivative instruments — The fair value of derivative instruments is estimated by discounting the projected future cash flows using appropriate
rates. The fair market value of deposits with counterparties approximates its carrying value.

The fair value of accrued interest receivable and payable approximates their carrying value.




Note 14. Supplemental Disclosure of Cash Flow Information

(in thousands) 2003 2002 2001
Cash paid for interest $ 41,058 $37,546 $28,918
Cash paid for income taxes $ 18,831 $ 3,581 S 684
Non-cash items:
Dividends payable $ 30,559 $16,768 $ 4,758
Securities retained in securitizations $292,675 $90,785 $59,570
Retention of mortgage servicing rights $ 20,774 S 6,070 S 5,654
Surrender of warrants $ — $ 3673 S -
Assets acquired through foreclosure $ 6,619 S 8,417 $20,159
Dividend reinvestment plan program S 1,247 S — S —

Non-cash activities related to the acquisition of common stock of NFI Holding Corporation on January 1, 2001 were as follows (in thousands).

2001

Operating activities:

Increase in mortgage loans held-for-sale $(81,733)

Increase in other assets $(11,132)

Decrease in other liabilities $ (9,422
Investing activities:

Increase in real estate owned S (892)
Financing activities:

Increase in borrowings $ 36,900
Non-cash financing activities related to founders’ notes receivable:

Decrease in founders’ notes receivable S 4,340

Decrease in additional paid-in capital S (4,340
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Note 15. Commitments, Guarantees and Contingencies

The Company makes commitments to borrowers to fund residential mortgage loans as well as commitments to purchase and sell mortgage
loans to third parties. At December 31, 2003, the Company had outstanding commitments to originate, purchase and sell loans of $228
million, $60 million and SO, respectively. The Company had outstanding commitments to originate, purchase and sell loans of $108 million,
$16 million and $98 million, respectively as of December 31, 2002.

The Company leases office space under various operating lease agreements. Rent expense for 2003, 2002 and 2001, aggregated $7.5
million, $2.4 million and $1.5 million respectively. Future minimum lease commitments under those leases are as follows (in thousands):

Lease Obligations

2004 L e e $6,425
200 e 5,523
2006 . o 5,332
20007 e 5,349
20008 o 5,349
B B T=T (T (=Y T 3,565

The Company has entered into various lease agreements in which the lessor agreed to repay the Company for certain existing lease obligations.
The Company received approximately $2.3 million and $62,000 related to these agreements in 2003 and 2002, respectively, and expects to
receive approximately $1.0 million in future payments through 2004 from the lessor unless the properties previously occupied are subleased.

The Company has also entered into various sublease agreements for office space formerly occupied by the Company. The Company received
approximately $537,000, $704,000 and $846,000 in 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively, related to these agreements and expects to
receive approximately $61,000 in future payments through 2004.

In the ordinary course of business, the Company sells loans with recourse for borrower defaults. For loans that have been sold with recourse
and are no longer on the Company’s balance sheet, the recourse component is considered a guarantee. The Company sold loans with
recourse for borrower defaults totaling $151.2 miflion and $142.2 million in 2003 and 2002, respectively. The Company's reserve related
to these guarantees totaled '$41,000 and $29,000 as of December 31, 2003 and 2002, respectively.

In the ordinary course of business, the Company sells loans with recourse where a defect occurred in the loan origination process. The
Company typically guarantees to cover investor losses should origination defects occur. The defects are categorized as documentation and
underwriting errors, judgments, early payment defaults and fraud. If a defect is identified, the Company is required to repurchase the loan.
As of December 31, 2003, the Company had loans sold with recourse with an outstanding principal balance of $6.4 billion.

in connection with various regulatory lending requirements, certain wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company are required to maintain minimum
levels of net worth. The wholly-owned subsidiaries were in compliance with these requirements as of December 31, 2003.

In the normal course of its business, the Company is subject to various legal proceedings and claims, the resolution of which, in the opinion of
management, will not have a material adverse effect on the Company’s financial condition or results of operations.




Note 16. Affiliated Branches

As discussed in Note 1, the Company is party to LLC agreements for the purpose of establishing affiliated branches. As of December 31,
2003 and 2002, there were 423 and 207 such affiliated branches. For the years ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001, the Company
recorded fee income aggregating $12.8 million, $5.2 million and $1.9 million respectively, for providing administrative services for affiliated
branches. During 2003, 2002 and 2001, the aggregate amount of loans brokered by affiliated branches were approximately $5.7 billion,
$2.2 billion and $710.3 million, respectively. Of those amounts, approximately $1.3 billion, $399.6 miliion and $110.5 million, respectively,
were acquired by the Company's mortgage subsidiary. The aggregate premiums paid by the Company for loans brokered by the affiliated
branches were approximately $15.1 million, $5.1 million and $1.2 million for the years ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively.
In conjunction with the use of the Company’s mortgage broker license, the Company is contingentiy liable for limited representations and
warrantees of the affiliated branches as well as certain operating liabilities in the event that the LLCs are unable to meet their obligations upon
dissolution. The Company requires that the branch managers maintain a reserve with the Company to cover such obligations. Historically,
the amounts that the Company has been required to pay as a result of these arrangements have been insignificant. The Company records an
estimate of obligations regarding affiliated branch arrangements in the consolidated financial statements.

Note 17. Earnings Per Share
The computations of basic and diluted earnings per share for the years ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001 are as follows
(in thousands, except per share amounts}):

For the Year Ended December 31,

2003 2002 2001

Numerator $111,996 $48,761 $32,308
Denominator:
Weighted average common shares outstanding - basic

Common shares outstanding 22,220 20,758 11,478

Convertible preferred stock — — 8,572
Weighted average common shares outstanding - basic 22,220 20,758 20,050
Weighted average common shares outstanding -~ dilutive

Stock options 601 524 378

Warrants — 378 954
Weighted average common shares outstanding - dilutive 22,821 21,660 21,382
Basic earnings per share § 5.04 S 235 S 16l
Diluted earnings per share S 49 S 225 $ 151

The following stock options and warrants to purchase shares of common stock were outstanding during each period presented, but were
not included in the computation of diluted earnings per share because the number of shares assumed to be repurchased, as calculated was
greater than the number of shares to be obtained upon exercise, therefore, the effect would be antidilutive:

For the Year Ended December 31,

2003 2002 2001
Number of stock options and warrants (in thousands) 15 300 420
Weighted average exercise price $22.66 $12.50 $8.17
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Note 18. Subsequent Events

On January 16, 2004, the Company sold 2.6 million shares of Series C Cumulative Redeemable Perpetual Preferred Stock, raising $62.9
million in net proceeds. The shares have a liguidation value of $25.00 per share and will pay an annual coupon of 8.90%. The Company has
granted its underwriters an option, exercisable for 30 days, to purchase up to an additional 390,000 shares to cover over-allotments, if any.
On February 6, 2004, the underwriters exercised their options for 380,000 shares in over-allotments resulting in net proceeds of $9.4 million.

During February 2004, the Company notified the branch managers of the limited liability companies described in Notes 1 and 16 to the
consolidated financial statements, that the Company was terminating these agreements effective January 1, 2004. Branches that formerly
operated under these agreements either become independent of the Company, or will become operating units of the Company. As operating
units of the Company, their financial results will be included in the consolidated financial statements.

Note 19. Condensed Quarterly Financial Information (unaudited)

Following is condensed consolidated quarterly operating results for the Company (in thousands, except per share amounts):

2003 Quarters 2002 Quarters

First Second Third Fourth First Second Third Fourth

Net interest income before
credit recoveries (losses) $28,687 $31,547 $33,469 $36,353 $12,943 $18,873 $19,690 $27,909
Credit recoveries (losses) 92 171 875 (749) (133) 379 383 (197)
Gains on sales of mortgage assets 29,443 44,031 34,188 36,343 4,630 15,993 17,293 15,389
Gains {losses) on derivative instruments (9,149) {15,037 (8,144) 1,493 1,438 {15,766) (16,349) {6,164)
Income before income tax benefit (expense) 27,100 32,904 30,952 43,900 10,221 7,752 11,359 17,398
Income tax benefit (expense) (4,141) (4,183) (5,844) (8,692) (1,300) 2,638 840 (147)
Net income 22,959 28,721 25,108 35,208 8,921 10,390 12,199 17,251
Basic earnings per share $ 1.09 $ 1.32 S 112 S 149 $ 043 $ 050 S 059 S 083
Diluted earnings per share S 1.07 S 1.28 S 1.09 S 145 S 040 S 049 $ 057 S 081

Effective January 1, 2003, the Company adopted the fair value recognition provisions of SFAS No. 123, Accounting for Stock-Based
Compensation. The Company selected the modified prospective method of adoption as described in SFAS No. 148, Accounting for Stock-
Based Compensation-Transition and Disclosure. In adopting SFAS No. 123 retroactive to January 1, 2003, results for the quarters previously
reported in the 2003 Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q were restated to the amounts noted above for the modified prospective method of
adoption. The pretax impact of adopting the provisions under the modified prospective method for the three months ended March 31, 2003,
June 30, 2003 and September 30, 2003 was a decrease to compensation expense of $S0.6 million, $5.6 million and $0.8 million, respectively.
Results for prior years have not been restated. See Note 1.




The following amounts from the Company’s financial statements for the three months ended March 31, June 30 and September 30, 2003
have been revised from amounts previously reported to account for stock compensation expense under the fair value method prescribed by
SFAS No. 123, in accordance with the modified prospective method of SFAS No. 148 (in thousands, except per share amounts};

March 31, 2003 June 30, 2003 September 30, 2003
As Previously As Previously As Previously
Reported As Adjusted Reported As Adjusted Reported As Adjusted
Additional paid-in capital (A) $134,448 $133,811 $166,512 $160,273 $180,746 $173,672
Accumulated deficit (16,818) {16,181) (21,737) (15,498) {26,010 (18,836)
Stockholders’ equity 194,597 194,597 230,469 230,469 236,242 236,242
Compensation and benefits expense 19,442 18,805 30,419 24,817 26,287 25,452
Income before income tax expense (benefit) 26,463 27,100 27,302 32,904 30,117 30,952
Net income 22,322 22,959 23,119 28,721 24,273 25,108
Basic earnings per share (A) $ 106 S 1.09 S 1.06 S 1.32 S 1.08 S 112
Diluted earnings per share (A) S 1.04 $  1.07 $ 1.03 S 128 S 105 S 1.09

(A) Additional paid-in capital, basic earnings pev sharve and diluted earnings per share as vepovted have been adjusted to reflect the Company’s two-for-one stock split on Degember 1, 2003,
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Independent Auditors’ Report

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of
NovaStar Financial, Inc.
Kansas City, Missouri

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of NovaStar Financial, Inc. and subsidiaries (the “Company”) as of December
31, 2003 and 2002, and:the related consolidated statements of income, stockholders’ equity, and cash flows for each of the three years in
the period ended December 31, 2003. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is
to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those standards require
that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement.
An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also
includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, such consclidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Company as of
December 31, 2003 and 2002, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December
31, 2003 in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

As discussed in Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements, the Company changed its method of accounting for stock-based compensation
to conform to Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 123, Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation effective January 1, 2003,

Deloitty § doueke Lrp

Kansas City, Missouri
March 3, 2004
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2002: Independent Accountants
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